
Inverness Public Utility District 
Fire Depa rtment         W a ter System  

50 Inverness Way North  •  P.O. Box 469  •  Inverness CA 94937  •  (415) 669-1414 

 
Material provided in the meeting packet is available on the District’s website, www.invernesspud.org, or by contacting the District office. 

Items may not be taken up in the order shown on this Agenda. 
For assistance in participating in this event due to a disability as defined under the ADA, please call in advance to (415) 669-1414. 

THE PUBLIC IS CORDIALLY INVITED TO PARTICIPATE AND TO COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Board of Directors:  Kenneth J. Emanuels, President  •  Dakota Whitney, Vice President 
Kathryn Donohue, Treasurer  •  Brent Johnson  •  David Press 

  
Shelley Redding, Administrator/Clerk of the Board 

James K. Fox, Chief of Operations (Fire Chief, Water System Superintendent) 

Board of Directors AGENDA  Regular Meeting  
Wednesday, January 26, 2022 9:05 a.m. Video/Teleconference  

MODIFIED BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS IN LIGHT OF STATE OF EMERGENCY 
The health and safety of community members, public officials, and employees is a top priority for the IPUD. Pursuant to CA 

Assembly Bill 361, members of the Board of Directors, IPUD staff, and members of the public will participate in this meeting by 
teleconference. The IPUD will not offer an in-person meeting location for the public to attend this meeting. Members of the public 

are encouraged to participate remotely from a safe location as described below.  

Join Zoom meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82250964551?pwd=akFRRTQxTFAvSGZTbnpHelVKbzV4UT09 

Meeting ID: 822 5096 4551 
Passcode: 385866 

One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,82250964551#,,,,*385866# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,82250964551#,,,,*385866# US (Houston) 

or 
Dial by your location 

        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

                   +1 929 205 6099 US (New York)     +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
Meeting ID: 822 5096 4551 

Passcode: 385866 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb5rSzGw68 

Opening 9:05 a.m. 

1. Call to Order; Attendance Report 

2. Election of Officers for 2022 (President, Vice President, Treasurer; ex officio officers) 

3. Public Expression: Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters under the Board’s 
jurisdiction but not on the posted agenda. Directors or staff “may briefly respond to statements made or 
questions posed” during Public Expression, but “no action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not 
appearing on the posted agenda” (Gov. Code §54954.2(a)(3)). Members of the public may comment on any item 
listed on the posted agenda at the time the item is considered by the Board. 

4. Proposed Voter Initiative Parcel Tax: Review and provide comments on proposed initiative ordinance to levy a 
special parcel tax for increased fire protection and control and water supply. 

5. Approval of Minutes: Regular meeting of November 17, 2021 

The State of the District 

6. Management Report: Shelley Redding, Jim Fox 
• Financial Reports 

o FY 2021/2022 Finance Reports 
o Capital Projects Accounting – November & December 2021 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82250964551?pwd=akFRRTQxTFAvSGZTbnpHelVKbzV4UT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb5rSzGw68


Inverness Public Utility District  Board of Directors  Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, January 26, 2022 AGENDA Video/Teleconference 

Page 2 

• Tenney Tanks Replacement Project Update 
• Marin Wildfire Prevention Authority (MWPA) Update 
• Marin Emergency Radio Authority (MERA) Update 
• State of the Water Shortage Emergency 
• Community Outreach 

7. Water System Reports: October, November, and December 2021: Superintendent Fox 
8. Fire Department Reports: November and December 2021: Chief J. Fox 
The Business of the District 
9. Approve Expenditures and Credit Card Charges: November and December 2021 
10. Accept and Approve the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Audit 
11. Accept and Approve Auditor’s 2020/2021 Management Report Recommendations and Response Letter 
12. Approval of Selection Process of Auditor for Fiscal Years 2021/22, 2022/23, and 2023/24 
13. Closed Session: Public Employee Evaluation (District Administrator) pursuant to Gov. Code Sec. 54957 
14. Reconvene in Open Session; Report on Actions Taken in Closed Session 
15. Committee Meetings/Reports; Board Committee Assignments for Calendar Year 2022  

Closing 

16. Announcements, Next Meeting, Adjournment 

  Posted: January 21, 2022 



            Inverness Public Utility District 
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 
 

Agenda Item No. 1 

Call to Order; 
Attendance Report 

 

 



              Inverness Public Utility District 

Board Meeting January 26, 2022 
 

  

 

 

 

Agenda Item No. 2 

Officer Elections 

(President, Vice President, Treasurer;  

ex oficio officers) 

Year 2022 

 



              Inverness Public Utility District 
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 3 

Public Expression 
Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters 

under the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the posted agenda. 

Directors or staff “may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed” 
during Public Expression, but “no action or discussion shall be undertaken on 

any item not appearing on the posted agenda” (Gov. Code §54954.2(a)(3)). 

Members of the public may comment on any item listed on the posted agenda 
at the time the item is considered by the Board. 

 

 



              Inverness Public Utility District 
Board Meeting November 17, 2021 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 4 

Proposed Voter 
Initiative Parcel Tax 

Review and provide comments on proposed 
initiative ordinance to levy a special parcel tax 

 



FULL TEXT OF MEASURE “*” 

Dec 11 version 

ORDINANCE NO. **** 
FULL TEXT OF THE INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT INCREASED FIRE PREVENTION AND CONTROL 

AND WATER SUPPLY MEASURE THROUGH AN ORDINANCE SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS IN THE 
INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF A SPECIAL PARCEL TAX 

 
THE PEOPLE OF THE INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND INTENT. 
 
 (a)  It is the purpose and intent of the voters of the Inverness Public Utility District in adopting 
this Ordinance to authorize the levy of a special, non-ad valorem tax on parcels of real property on the 
secured property tax roll of Marin County that are located within the jurisdiction of the District. 
 
 (b)  Pursuant to the authority of Chapter 4 of Division 9 of the California Elections Code and 
other applicable law, following the certification of the results of the election, if a majority of the voters 
vote “yes,” it is the purpose and intent of the voters that there shall be levied and assessed a special 
parcel tax by the District on all taxable parcels of real property in the District for each fiscal year. 
 
 (c)  It is the purpose and intent of the voters that the proceeds of the special parcel tax be 
expended only for fire protection and prevention services and water supply improvement, including, but 
not limited to, all of the following: 
 
  (1)  Improvements to the District water supply system to improve the ability of the 
system to fight fires. 
 
  (2)  Improvements to District and customer water use efficiency to make more water 
available to fight fires and survive droughts. 
 
  (3)  Fire fuel reduction, including fuel reduction projects within and near the boundaries 
of the District in partnership with state and federal park agencies and Marin County. 
 
  (4)  Administering the implementation of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS. 
 
The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this Ordinance: 
 
 (a)  “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Inverness Public Utility District. 
 
 (b)  “Consumer Price Index” means the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U) 
for the San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward Area (1982-84=100) as published by the U.S. Department of 
Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.  If the Consumer Price Index is discontinued or revised, another similar 
government index or computation shall be utilized, as determined by the District. 
 
 (c)  “District” means the Inverness Public Utility District. 

Aaron Silva
In 2018, the name of the Bay Area statistical area was changed from "San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose" to "San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward."  See https://www.bls.gov/cpi/additional-resources/geographic-revision-2018.htm.

sredding
Draft



2 
 

 
 (d)  “Fiscal year” means the period of July 1 through the following June 30. 
 
 (e)  “Parcel” means the land and any improvements thereon, designated by an assessor’s parcel 
map and parcel number and carried on the secured property tax roll inside the boundaries of the 
District.  “Parcel” does not include any land or improvements owned by any governmental agency. 
 
 (f)  “Special parcel tax” means the tax imposed under Section 3. 
 
 (g)  “Use Code” means the two-digit number created by the Marin County Assessor’s Office to 
define classes of properties. 
 
SECTION 3.  SPECIAL PARCEL TAX IMPOSED. 
 
 (a)  A special parcel tax is hereby imposed on all taxable parcels of real property within the 
jurisdictional boundaries of the District, as described in subdivision (b). 
 
 (b)  The amount of the special parcel tax for each fiscal year shall be as follows, as adjusted 
annually pursuant to subdivision (c): 
 
  (1)  Agricultural Preserve Farmland Security Zone (Use Code 35):  None in District. 
 
  (2)  Attached Single Family Residential (includes condominiums, townhouses, attached 
Planned Unit Developments, and co-ops) (Use Code 14):  $0.20 per square foot of each structure. 
 
  (3)  Commercial (Use Code 51):  $0.20 per square foot of each structure.   
 
  (4)  Historical Property (Mills Act) (Use Code 38):   $.0.20 per square foot of each 
structure 
 
  (5)  Industrial (Use Code 41):   $.0.20 per square foot of each structure 
 
 
  (6)  Manufactured Home (Use Code 12):  $0.20 per square foot of each structure. 
 
  (7)  Multiple Family Residential (Use Code 21):  $0.20 per square foot of each structure. 
 
  (8)  Open Space Contract (Use Code 37):   $150 per parcel.  
 
  (9)  Rural (Use Code 31):  Only for developed property, $0.20 per square foot of each 
structure. 
 
  (10)  Single Family Residential; Single Family Residential, one living unit; Single Family 
Residential, one living unit with second dwelling unit (Use Code 11):  $0.20 per square foot of each 
structure. 
 
  (11)  Subject to Exemption — Improved (Use Code 61):  $0.20 per square foot of each 
structure. 

Aaron Silva
Recommend reconsidering how to handle parcels for which there are "none in district."  Isn't it possible that a parcel with one of those use codes will come into being during the life of this measure?  By not assigning them a tax rate, the result would be to effectively exempt them from the tax, even if such a parcel comes into being.  May want to consider assigning them a tax rate in the event they come into being.

sredding
Draft



3 
 

 
  (12)  True Duplex (Use Code 21):  $0.20 per square foot of each structure. 
 
  (13)  Unimproved — All Non-Exempt vacant, (Use Codes 10, 20, 30, 32, 34, 36, 40, 50, 
60):  $$150.00 per parcel. 
 
   
 (c)  Before the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board of Directors shall adjust the maximum 
parcel tax to be levied upon parcels for the upcoming fiscal year to reflect any change in the Consumer 
Price Index beyond the first fiscal year the parcel tax is levied.  Change in the Consumer Price Index shall 
be calculated for the immediately preceding calendar year, but not to exceed an increase of 3% each 
year. 
 
 (d)  The records of the Marin County Tax Collector, as provided by the County Assessor, each 
year shall provide the basis for determining the calculation of the special parcel tax applicable to each 
parcel, with such corrections as deemed necessary by the Board of Directors to reflect the actual use 
and improvement of any parcel. 
 
SECTION 4.  EXEMPTIONS. 
 
 (a)  (1)  Except as provided in paragraph (2), the special parcel tax shall not be imposed upon any 
parcel that is exempt from ad valorem property taxes pursuant to any provision of state or federal law. 
 
  (2)  The exemptions from ad valorem property taxes under state law for homeowners 
and disabled veterans shall not apply to the special parcel tax. 
 
 (b)  Parcels that are classified by County Assessor Use Codes 13, 15, 53-59, and 80-90 are 
exempt from the special parcel tax. 
 
 (c)  The special parcel tax shall not be imposed upon any parcel which cannot receive water 
service from the District due to a lack of District water supply at or near the parcel. 
 
 (d)  The Board of Directors may implement a special parcel tax fee waiver or reduction program 
for low-income households by ordinance. 
 
SECTION 5.  COLLECTION. 
 
 (a)  Insofar as is feasible and not inconsistent with this Ordinance, the special parcel tax shall be 
collected in the same manner in which the County of Marin collects secured roll ad valorem property 
taxes.  All laws, regulations, and procedures regarding due dates, installment payments, corrections, 
appeals, cancellations, refunds, late payments, penalties, liens, and collections for secured roll ad 
valorem property taxes shall be applicable to the collection of the special parcel tax. 
 
 (b)  The special parcel tax on each parcel shall be billed on the secured roll tax bills for ad 
valorem property taxes and shall be due to the District.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
subdivision (a), the secured roll tax bill shall be the only notice required for collection of the special 
parcel tax. 
 

Aaron Silva
Should it be the records of the Tax Collector or the County Assessor?

jerry meral
County assessor provides the records to the tax collector

Aaron Silva
Moved to section below regarding exemptions.

Aaron Silva
It appears that Use Codes 33, 39, and 91 are also unaccounted for.

Aaron Silva
Recommend moving this paragraph into section regarding collection below.

jerry meral
Ok: please do in next draft. 

Aaron Silva
Not clear what the provisions of this paragraph are accomplishing.

jerry meral
Does this refer to (d) or Section 5? 

Aaron Silva
Recommend not referring to county collection costs.  There is already a complicated patchwork of state statutes addressing this.  See Gov. Code Secs. 29304 & 50077(b); Pub. Util. Code Sec. 16655.

jerry meral
Please amend. 

sredding
Draft



4 
 

 (c)  The amount of the special parcel tax for each parcel each fiscal year shall constitute a lien on 
such property in accordance with California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 2187 and shall have the 
same effect as an ad valorem real property tax lien until fully paid.  The special parcel tax, together with 
all penalties and interest thereon, shall constitute until paid, to the extent authorized by law, a personal 
obligation to the District by the person or persons who own the parcel on the date the tax is due. 
 
SECTION 6.  SPECIAL FUND. 
 
The proceeds of the special parcel tax shall be placed in a designated fund to be used solely for the 
purposes of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 7.  USE OF FUNDS. 
 
 (a)  Funds generated by this Ordinance shall be used only for the following purposes: 

 
  (1)  Fire fuel reduction programs to reduce the risk of loss of life and property due to fire 
through the reduction of fuels on public and private property within the District and on state and federal 
park lands near the District, including, but not limited to, all of the following: 
 
   (A)  Creation, restoration, and maintenance of shaded fuel breaks. 
 
   (B)  Removal of trees and branches which could fall on electrical wires and cause 
fires, where removal of such trees and branches is not the obligation of other utilities or public agencies. 
 
   (C)  Matching grants for home hardening and fuel reduction to improve 
defensible space on private property, if the private property owner agrees to create and maintain 
defensible space. 
 
   (D)  Removal of fuels which impair the utility of roads and trails needed for 
access by firefighters or for evacuation. 
 
  (2) Programs to increase the availability of water to fight fires and survive drought, 
including, but not limited to, all of the following:  
 
   (A)  Implementing consumer water conservation programs, including leak 
detection, on a cost sharing basis. 
 
   (B)  Making existing irrigation systems more efficient. 
 
   (C)  Replacing inefficient water using appliances with more efficient appliances. 
 
   (D)  Construction of rainwater and graywater collection and storage systems, 
including equipment to make the water available to firefighters. 
 
   (E)  Leak detection and elimination in District facilities. 
 
   (F)  Purchasing water for health and sanitation purposes in extremely dry years. 
 

sredding
Draft



5 
 

   (G)  Construction of water storage facilities.  
 

 (b)  Projects funded pursuant to this Ordinance shall comply with all of the following: 
 
  (1)  All projects shall comply with the California Environmental Quality Act. 
 
  (2)  Fuel reduction projects of more than 3 acres shall use the California Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection Vegetation Treatment Plan as guidance for project implementation. 
 
  (3)  No work shall be done on private property without the property owner’s 
permission. 
 
 (c)  No more than 5% of the revenue generated by this Ordinance may be spent for 
administrative costs, as authorized by the Board of Directors. 
 
SECTION 8.  AUDITS. 
 
Pursuant to Section 50075.3 of the California Government Code, the chief fiscal officer of the District 
shall file an annual report with the Board of Directors describing both of the following: 
 
 (a)  The amount of funds collected and expended pursuant to this Ordinance. 
 
 (b)  The status of any project required or authorized to be funded by this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 9.  AMENDMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF ORDINANCE. 
 
 (a)  Except as provided in subdivision (b), the Board of Directors may amend this Ordinance by 
an affirmative unanimous vote of its members to carry out the general purposes of this Ordinance, to 
conform the provisions of this Ordinance to applicable state law, to modify the methods of collection of 
the special parcel tax, or to assign the duties of public officials under this Ordinance. 
 
 (b)  Unless approved by a majority of the District’s voters voting thereon, the Board of Directors 
shall not amend this Ordinance to increase the maximum amount of the special parcel tax, except as 
provided in subdivision (c) of Section 3, or to modify the uses for which the tax proceeds are authorized, 
as provided in Section 7. 
 
 (c)  In addition to amendment of this Ordinance pursuant to subdivision (a), the Board of 
Directors may adopt by resolution procedures and definitions for the implementation and 
administration of the special parcel tax, consistent with this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 10.  SEVERABILITY. 
 
If any provision, section, subdivision, sentence, phrase, or clause of this Ordinance is for any reason held 
to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  The 
voters hereby declare that they would have adopted the remainder of this Ordinance, including each 
provision, section, subdivision, sentence, phrase, or clause, irrespective of the invalidity of any other 
provision, section, subdivision, sentence, phrase, or clause.    
 

Aaron Silva
Not clear if the 5% cap includes the county's costs in collecting and administering the tax.

jerry meral
Please amend to clarify that it does not include the county’s costs. 

Aaron Silva
Note that the county auditor is already required to conduct an annual audit of the accounts and records of the District.  Gov. Code Sec. 26909.

jerry meral
True, and the intent is not to add an additional audit, but to use that audit for this measure.  But I do want to call out the audit, since it appeals to the voters. 

sredding
Draft



              Inverness Public Utility District 
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 5 

Approval of Meeting Minutes 

• Regular Meeting November 17, 2021 

 



 

Board of Directors:  Kenneth J. Emanuels, President  •  Dakota Whitney, Vice President 
Kathryn Donohue, Treasurer  •  Brent Johnson  •  David Press 

  
Shelley Redding, Administrator  •  James K. Fox, Chief of Operations 

Inverness Public Utility District 
Fire Department        Water System 

50 Inverness Way No., P.O. Box 469, Inverness CA 94937    (415) 669-1414 
 
 

Board of Directors 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, November 17, 2021, 9:00 a.m. 
Inverness Firehouse 

1. Call to Order; Attendance Report 
President Emanuels called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
Directors Present:  Kenneth J. Emanuels, Brent Johnson, Dakota Whitney, David Press, Kathryn Donohue 
Directors Absent:  None 
Staff Present:  Shelley Redding, Clerk and Administrator; Jim Fox, Chief of Operations (departed at 9:45 

am), Wade Holland (departed at 9:30) 
2. Public Expression 

Jerry Meral reported that the application for Inverness to become a FIREWise Community was successful.  

3. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 27, 2021 
Director Donohue asked about follow-up on arranging CPR classes for the community. Administrator 
Redding responded that there are classes that can be arranged and she is looking inro the possibility of 
scheduling in-person classes. Director Donohue also asked about potential Grant opportunities and 
Administrator Redding reported that she would provide information later in the meeting. 
M/S Whitney/Press to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 27, 2021, as submitted. AYES 
5, NOES 0 

4. WATER RATES: Public Hearing pursuant to Prop. 218 on Proposed Changes in Water Rates and 
Charges; Adoption of Ordinance 104-2021 Amending Water System Regulation 301, “Rates and 
Charges” 
a. Public Hearing on Proposal to Change Water System Rates and Charges as of January 1, 2022: 

President Emanuels opened the public hearing at 9:10 a.m. for comments on the proposed changes in 
water rates to become effective January 1, 2022. Jerry Meral urged the Board to “Go for it.” There being 
no one else expressing a desire to be heard, President Emanuels closed the public hearing at 9:13 a.m. 

b. Determination of Number of Protests Received to Proposed Increase in Water System Rates and 
Charges: Administrator Redding reported that one (1) written protest has been received. Director 
Emanuels expressed appreciation to the staff for their preparation for the public hearing and noted that 
the proposed drought surcharge will be in effect for only 18 months and that minimal cost-of-living rate 
increases are scheduled over the next 5 years. Director Emanuels declared that the number of protests 
received does not constitute a majority of the customers. 

c. Adoption of Ordinance 104-2021, Amending Water System Regulation 301, “Rates and Charges”: 
Director Emanuels called for a motion. 
M/S Johnson/Whitney to adopt Ordinance 104-2021 Amending Water System Regulation 301 (“Water 
Rates”), as proposed. AYES 5, NOES 0. 

Customer Services Manager Holland departed. President Emanuels agreed to a request from Chief of 



Inverness Public Utility District Page 2 Minutes, November 17, 2021 
 

Operations Fox that the Water System and Fire Department reports be heard next to accommodate his need 
to attend a scheduled meeting at the worksite of the Tenney Tanks Replacement Project. 

5. Water System Report, October 2021: Superintendent Fox reported on the current water system operations 
and the ongoing water shortage emergency. He noted that the October rains have increased streamflows, 
presumably resulting in good saturation in the watershed, but continued rainfall will be essential in order to 
avoid drought conditions in 2022. He said that continued conservation and maintenance of the restrictions on 
outdoor watering need to remain in effect until we see how the winter’s precipitation develops.  
Superintendent Fox also reported on the progress of the Tenney Tanks Replacement Project and distributed 
a picture of the first tank, which has been erected and is scheduled next for piping, filling, and sampling. It 
can then be filled and put into service, at which point the existing 60,000-gallon tank will be taken out of 
service and dismantled in preparation for its replacement. He also offered to take Board Members to the site 
for a tour. There followed a discussion about the project timeline and environmental impacts.  

6. Fire Department Report, October 2021 
Chief Fox reported on the Fire Department’s activities. He reported that the Inverness Disaster Council 
conducted a successful drill with the neighborhood liaisons. The Directors noted the remarkable job Sally 
Fairfax and Connie Morse have done in organizing the Disaster Council and expressed an interest in 
recognizing their efforts. 
Chief of Operations Fox departed. 

7. Management Report 
Financial Reports: Administrator Redding presented the financial reports for October 2021.  
Audit Update: Administrator Redding reported that the audit is almost complete, pending some final analysis 
reviews. 
Capital Projects Accounting, October 2021: Administrator Redding presented the Capital Projects report 
for October 2021.  
10-year Capital Projects Planning Document: Administrator Redding presented an updated document for 
review and suggestions. Director Johnson suggested that the amount to be set aside for distribution system 
pipeline replacement should probably be increased, because those types of projects tend to be expensive. 
Administrator Redding said that she will consult with Chief of Operations Fox. 
Tenney Tanks Replacement Project Update: In addition to the progress reported already provided by Chief 
of Operations Fox, Administrator Redding noted that the first reimbursement request to Water Boards was 
approved and we should be receiving the reimbursement check soon. Because of delays with the tank 
manufacturing, we may have to ask for an extension of the project completion date beyond April 30, 2022. 
MWPA Update: Director Donohue asked to defer a report until next meeting. She did note that the MWPA 
has its annual report posted on the MWPA website and encouraged everyone to review it. 
MERA Update: Administrator Redding noted that tower leases and construction continue. More information 
will be available after a MERA Board meeting later today. 
State of the Water Shortage Emergency: Administrator Redding noted the previous discussion and had 
nothing further to add. 

8. Expenditures: October 2021 
Administrator Redding presented the monthly expenditures report for October and the October credit card 
statements for review and approval.  
M/S Whitney/Donohue to approve the October 2021 expenditures as presented and the October Cal Card 
statements for S. Redding and J. Fox as presented. AYES 5, NOES 0 
 



Inverness Public Utility District Page 3 Minutes, November 17, 2021 
 
9. Approve Board Meeting Calendar for 2022  

Administrator Redding presented the proposed Board Meeting Calendar for 2022, noting that the meetings in 
November and December are scheduled a week earlier to accommodate holidays. 
M/S Whitney/Johnson to approve the 2022 Board Meeting Calendar as presented. AYES 5, NOES 0 

10. Volunteer Appreciation 
Administrator Redding submitted a request to provide gift cards in lieu of an annual party to the Fire 
Department’s volunteers. A suggestion was made to purchase gift cards from the Palace Market. 
M/S Whitney/Press to approve the purchase up to $1,500 in gift cards to be presented to the Fire Department 
volunteers in lieu of the annual Holiday party. AYES 5, NOES 0 

11. Committee Meetings/Reports 
There were no reports. 

12. Announcements, Next Meeting, Adjournment 
Administrator Redding announced that the next Board Meeting is scheduled one week early because of the 
Christmas holiday.  
President Emanuels adjourned the meeting at 10:30 a.m. The next Board meeting is scheduled for December 
15, 2021, at the Firehouse. 
These minutes were approved by the Board of Directors at the regular meeting on January 26, 2022. 

 
Attest:  /s/ Date: 1/26/2022 
Shelley Redding, Clerk of the Board 



              Inverness Public Utility District 
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 6 

Management Report 
Clerk S. Redding & J. Fox 

  Financial Reports 
• FY 2021/2022 Finance Reports 
• Capital Projects Accounting – November & December 2021 

   Tenney Tanks Replacement Project Update 
 Marin Wildfire Prevention Authority (MWPA) Update 
 Marin Emergency Radio Authority (MERA) Update 
 State of the Water Shortage Emergency 
 Community Outreach 

 
 

 



Nov 21 Dec 21 TOTAL

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

N 600 · Property Tax  Income
600-01 · Ad Valorem Property Taxes 37.10 261,827.29 261,864.39
600-02 · Special Fire Tax Assessment 0.00 42,219.68 42,219.68
600-03 · Excess ERAF 0.00 63,069.54 63,069.54

Total N 600 · Property Tax  Income 37.10 367,116.51 367,153.61

N 650 · Other Agency Income
650-04 · WMES (Burton Funds) 0.00 7,490.00 7,490.00

Total N 650 · Other Agency Income 0.00 7,490.00 7,490.00

N 700 · Water Charges
700-01 · Basic Charges 0.00 75,007.50 75,007.50
700-02 · Usage Charges 0.00 3,262.00 3,262.00
700-03 · Cross Connection Fees 0.00 216.00 216.00
700-04 · Miscellaneous Charges 0.00 200.00 200.00

Total N 700 · Water Charges 0.00 78,685.50 78,685.50

N 710 · Misc.  Income
710-02 · Other Income 0.00 3,229.31 3,229.31
N 710 · Misc.  Income - Other 0.00 0.03 0.03

Total N 710 · Misc.  Income 0.00 3,229.34 3,229.34

Total Income 37.10 456,521.35 456,558.45

Gross Profit 37.10 456,521.35 456,558.45

Expense
Void Check 0.00 0.00 0.00
N 810 · Personnel Expenses

810-01 · Management 18,479.73 8,705.89 27,185.62
810-02 · Operations Personnel 18,853.88 13,567.04 32,420.92
810-03 · Administrative Personnel 2,848.86 2,872.80 5,721.66
810-04 · Employer Payroll Taxes 3,241.14 2,730.17 5,971.31
810-07 · Health Insurance Premiums 17,502.72 -296.85 17,205.87
810-08 · Retirement Premiums 4,818.00 3,560.32 8,378.32
810-10 · Accrued Vacation 1,748.16 2,437.20 4,185.36
810-11 · Workers Comp Insurance 0.00 -328.24 -328.24

Total N 810 · Personnel Expenses 67,492.49 33,248.33 100,740.82

N 830 · Dispatch  & Communications
830-02 · Commo Supplies 98.84 0.00 98.84

Total N 830 · Dispatch  & Communications 98.84 0.00 98.84

N 833 · Collection & Treatment
833-01 · Chemicals 221.42 995.54 1,216.96

Total N 833 · Collection & Treatment 221.42 995.54 1,216.96

N 835 · Lab & Monitoring
835-01 · BacT & Raw Samples 385.00 294.00 679.00

Total N 835 · Lab & Monitoring 385.00 294.00 679.00

1:11 PM Inverness PUD

01/11/22 2-Profit & Loss- Month
Accrual Basis November through December 2021

Page 1



Nov 21 Dec 21 TOTAL

N 840 · Maintenance & Utilities
840-02 · Building Maintenance 2,300.41 0.00 2,300.41
840-03 · Grounds Maintenance 0.00 43.00 43.00
840-04 · Tank Maintenance 85.61 0.00 85.61
840-06 · Distribution System Maintenance 490.00 0.00 490.00
840-07 · Collection-Treatment Utilities 3,009.57 2,344.81 5,354.38
840-08 · Distribution System Utilities 84.31 85.55 169.86
840-09 · Firehouse Utilities 760.29 263.79 1,024.08
840-10 · SCADA Maintenance 90.00 892.00 982.00

Total N 840 · Maintenance & Utilities 6,820.19 3,629.15 10,449.34

N 844 · Storage & Distribution
844-01 · Telemetry 188.62 188.62 377.24

Total N 844 · Storage & Distribution 188.62 188.62 377.24

N 845 · Supplies & Inventory
845-01 · Supplies and Inventory 2,445.68 2,060.94 4,506.62

Total N 845 · Supplies & Inventory 2,445.68 2,060.94 4,506.62

N 850 · Training
850-01 · Volunteer Training 143.38 130.30 273.68
850-02 · Certification  & Courses 0.00 75.00 75.00
850-03 · Volunteer Appreciation 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
850-04 · Volunteer Stipends 0.00 1,890.00 1,890.00

Total N 850 · Training 143.38 3,595.30 3,738.68

N 860 · Vehicle Operations
860-01 · Gas & Oil 1,075.80 1,106.23 2,182.03
860-02 · Repairs & Service 1,598.93 51.75 1,650.68

Total N 860 · Vehicle Operations 2,674.73 1,157.98 3,832.71

N 870 · Administration
870-01 · Telephone, Internet, Cable 392.90 405.04 797.94
870-02 · Dues & Publications 18.00 318.00 336.00
870-04 · Financial Reporting/Audit 5,225.00 0.00 5,225.00
870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees 701.44 666.94 1,368.38
870-06 · Bank & Payroll Charges 1,383.94 239.60 1,623.54
870-08 · Board & Election Expenses 0.00 339.37 339.37
870-10 · Public Relations & Outreach 347.39 260.00 607.39
870-11 · Office IT Support 180.00 210.00 390.00
870-12 · Billing & Collections 706.56 715.53 1,422.09
870-13 · Disaster Council 981.31 0.00 981.31
870-14 · Miscellaneous 0.02 0.00 0.02
870-15 · Other Agency Assessments 0.00 4,303.44 4,303.44
870-16 · Property Tax Admin. Fees 0.00 4,120.76 4,120.76

Total N 870 · Administration 9,936.56 11,578.68 21,515.24

Total Expense 90,406.91 56,748.54 147,155.45

Net Ordinary Income -90,369.81 399,772.81 309,403.00

Net Income -90,369.81 399,772.81 309,403.00

1:11 PM Inverness PUD

01/11/22 2-Profit & Loss- Month
Accrual Basis November through December 2021

Page 2



DISTRICT FIRE WATER TOTAL

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

N 600 · Property Tax  Income
600-01 · Ad Valorem Property Taxes 270,616.54 0.00 0.00 270,616.54
600-02 · Special Fire Tax Assessment 0.00 42,219.68 0.00 42,219.68
600-03 · Excess ERAF 79,881.20 0.00 0.00 79,881.20
600-04 · Prior Year Taxes 2,192.00 614.11 0.00 2,806.11

Total N 600 · Property Tax  Income 352,689.74 42,833.79 0.00 395,523.53

N 650 · Other Agency Income
650-02 · MWPA Defensible Space Program 0.00 983.00 0.00 983.00
650-03 · MWPA Local Specific Prevention 0.00 982.99 0.00 982.99
650-04 · WMES (Burton Funds) 0.00 7,490.00 0.00 7,490.00

Total N 650 · Other Agency Income 0.00 9,455.99 0.00 9,455.99

N 700 · Water Charges
700-01 · Basic Charges 0.00 0.00 224,876.50 224,876.50
700-02 · Usage Charges 0.00 0.00 28,875.00 28,875.00
700-03 · Cross Connection Fees 0.00 0.00 648.00 648.00
700-04 · Miscellaneous Charges 0.00 0.00 753.50 753.50

Total N 700 · Water Charges 0.00 0.00 255,153.00 255,153.00

N 710 · Misc.  Income
710-02 · Other Income 218.68 3,445.74 64.89 3,729.31
710-04 · Merchandise Sales 0.00 65.00 0.00 65.00
710-07 · Interest Income 35.40 0.00 0.00 35.40
710-08 · CERBT OPEB Reimbursement 39,983.88 0.00 0.00 39,983.88
N 710 · Misc.  Income - Other 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.03

Total N 710 · Misc.  Income 40,237.99 3,510.74 64.89 43,813.62

Total Income 392,927.73 55,800.52 255,217.89 703,946.14

Gross Profit 392,927.73 55,800.52 255,217.89 703,946.14

Expense
N 810 · Personnel Expenses

810-01 · Management 57,625.31 24,743.09 21,084.79 103,453.19
810-02 · Operations Personnel 0.00 -2,466.61 108,783.65 106,317.04
810-03 · Administrative Personnel 17,039.80 0.00 6,004.00 23,043.80
810-04 · Employer Payroll Taxes 5,986.35 2,201.59 11,003.38 19,191.32
810-07 · Health Insurance Premiums 18,032.72 5,690.60 20,630.83 44,354.15
810-08 · Retirement Premiums 5,678.37 5,401.33 15,636.73 26,716.43
810-09 · Unfunded Accrued Liability 30,679.08 1,695.75 1,036.17 33,411.00
810-10 · Accrued Vacation 1,436.40 0.00 7,196.43 8,632.83
810-11 · Workers Comp Insurance -3,380.73 5,619.84 7,428.02 9,667.13

Total N 810 · Personnel Expenses 133,097.30 42,885.59 198,804.00 374,786.89

N 830 · Dispatch  & Communications
830-02 · Commo Supplies 0.00 406.75 0.00 406.75
830-03 · MERA Operations 0.00 11,915.00 0.00 11,915.00
830-05 · MERA New Financing 0.00 1,121.00 0.00 1,121.00

Total N 830 · Dispatch  & Communications 0.00 13,442.75 0.00 13,442.75

N 833 · Collection & Treatment
833-01 · Chemicals 0.00 0.00 2,723.81 2,723.81

Total N 833 · Collection & Treatment 0.00 0.00 2,723.81 2,723.81

N 835 · Lab & Monitoring
835-01 · BacT & Raw Samples 0.00 0.00 2,191.00 2,191.00
835-02 · Periodic Samples 0.00 0.00 3,744.00 3,744.00
835-03 · Lead & Copper 0.00 0.00 590.00 590.00

Total N 835 · Lab & Monitoring 0.00 0.00 6,525.00 6,525.00

12:14 PM Inverness PUD
01/20/22 2-Profit & Loss- Month
Accrual Basis July through December 2021

Page 1



DISTRICT FIRE WATER TOTAL

N 840 · Maintenance & Utilities
840-01 · Equipment Maintenance 0.00 0.00 439.48 439.48
840-02 · Building Maintenance 0.00 185.23 0.00 185.23
840-03 · Grounds Maintenance 0.00 276.00 403.04 679.04
840-04 · Tank Maintenance 0.00 0.00 3,485.61 3,485.61
840-05 · Collection & Treatment Maint. 0.00 0.00 293.18 293.18
840-06 · Distribution System Maintenance 0.00 0.00 2,620.83 2,620.83
840-07 · Collection-Treatment Utilities 0.00 0.00 18,445.88 18,445.88
840-08 · Distribution System Utilities 0.00 0.00 506.74 506.74
840-09 · Firehouse Utilities 0.00 2,519.42 0.00 2,519.42
840-10 · SCADA Maintenance 0.00 0.00 2,512.00 2,512.00

Total N 840 · Maintenance & Utilities 0.00 2,980.65 28,706.76 31,687.41

N 843 · Fire Prevention
843-01 · Public Education and Awareness 0.00 181.19 0.00 181.19

Total N 843 · Fire Prevention 0.00 181.19 0.00 181.19

N 844 · Storage & Distribution
844-01 · Telemetry 0.00 0.00 1,131.72 1,131.72
844-03 · Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 12.94 12.94

Total N 844 · Storage & Distribution 0.00 0.00 1,144.66 1,144.66

N 845 · Supplies & Inventory
845-01 · Supplies and Inventory 685.00 4,344.37 6,576.92 11,606.29
845-02 · Personal Protective Equipment 0.00 846.06 0.00 846.06
845-03 · Resale Merchandise 0.00 2,360.52 0.00 2,360.52
845-04 · Uniforms 0.00 0.00 92.89 92.89

Total N 845 · Supplies & Inventory 685.00 7,550.95 6,669.81 14,905.76

N 850 · Training
850-01 · Volunteer Training 0.00 1,003.88 0.00 1,003.88
850-02 · Certification  & Courses 0.00 0.00 75.00 75.00
850-03 · Volunteer Appreciation 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00
850-04 · Volunteer Stipends 0.00 1,890.00 0.00 1,890.00

Total N 850 · Training 0.00 4,393.88 75.00 4,468.88

N 860 · Vehicle Operations
860-01 · Gas & Oil 0.00 2,045.55 3,985.78 6,031.33
860-02 · Repairs & Service 0.00 3,029.71 2,402.10 5,431.81

Total N 860 · Vehicle Operations 0.00 5,075.26 6,387.88 11,463.14

N 870 · Administration
870-01 · Telephone, Internet, Cable 1,559.36 298.17 618.97 2,476.50
870-02 · Dues & Publications 5,062.75 499.00 1,192.25 6,754.00
870-03 · Insurance 0.00 12,651.62 15,463.08 28,114.70
870-04 · Financial Reporting/Audit 17,435.50 0.00 0.00 17,435.50
870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees 2,441.07 113.69 786.60 3,341.36
870-06 · Bank & Payroll Charges 5,210.90 0.00 0.00 5,210.90
870-07 · Legal Expenses and Attorneys 2,067.00 0.00 960.00 3,027.00
870-08 · Board & Election Expenses -110.45 0.00 0.00 -110.45
870-09 · Travel & Meetings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
870-10 · Public Relations & Outreach 2,353.84 0.00 3,850.40 6,204.24
870-11 · Office IT Support 1,080.00 0.00 0.00 1,080.00
870-12 · Billing & Collections 0.00 0.00 4,848.18 4,848.18
870-13 · Disaster Council 0.00 1,754.77 0.00 1,754.77
870-14 · Miscellaneous 589.76 3,301.14 0.00 3,890.90
870-15 · Other Agency Assessments 1,016.54 700.00 4,653.44 6,369.98
870-16 · Property Tax Admin. Fees 4,120.76 0.00 0.00 4,120.76

Total N 870 · Administration 42,827.03 19,318.39 32,372.92 94,518.34

Total Expense 176,609.33 95,828.66 283,409.84 555,847.83

Net Ordinary Income 216,318.40 -40,028.14 -28,191.95 148,098.31

Net Income 216,318.40 -40,028.14 -28,191.95 148,098.31

12:14 PM Inverness PUD
01/20/22 2-Profit & Loss- Month
Accrual Basis July through December 2021

Page 2



Dec 31, 20

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings 477,332.38
Accounts Receivable 91,985.02
Other Current Assets 1,058,023.19

Total Current Assets 1,627,340.59

Fixed Assets 1,505,979.40
Other Assets 729,016.71

TOTAL ASSETS 3,862,336.70

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 14,177.17
Credit Cards -2,456.38
Other Current Liabilities 1,528,172.07

Total Current Liabilities 1,539,892.86

Long Term Liabilities 116,081.00

Total Liabilities 1,655,973.86

Equity 2,206,362.84

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,862,336.70

12:18 PM Inverness PUD
01/20/22 Summary Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2020

Page 1



FY1617 FY1718 FY1819 FY1920 FY2021 FY2122 Active Projects Completed Projects Capitalized 2

No. Project Name Total Total Am't Amount Total Total Total
Budget Spent Remaining Spent Unspent

Water
1-371-22 Tenney Tank Replacement Project $865,000 -$4,000 -$49,316 -$5,745 -$5,758 -$156,826 -$201,946 -$423,592 $441,408 $0

Totals $865,000 -$4,000 -$49,316 -$5,745 -$5,758 -$156,826 -$201,946 -$423,592 $441,408 $0 $0 $0

Grand Totals $865,000 -$423,592 $441,408 $0 $0 $0

Date Description
Expense 
Amount 5% Retention

Invoiced 
Receiveable Balance FY Total

Beginning Balance 0.00 0.00
6/30/2017 Fiscal Year Expenses 4,000.00
6/30/2017 End of year balance (4,000.00)       FY 16/17
6/30/2018 Fiscal Year Expenses 49,316.32
6/30/2018 End of year balance (53,316.32)     FY 17/18
6/30/2019 Fiscal Year Expenses 5,745.38
6/30/2019 End of year balance (59,061.70)     FY 18/19
6/30/2020 Fiscal Year Expenses 5,757.60
6/30/2020 End of year balance (64,819.30)     FY 19/20
6/30/2021 Fiscal Year Expenses 154,159.17   
6/30/2021 End of year balance 154,159.17   (4,840.13)      91,962.46     (221,645.76)   FY 20/21
7/16/2021 Brelje & Race Engineers 2,621.25       2,621.25       (224,267.01)    
8/6/2021 Bauer & Associates - Geotech 3,378.00       3,378.00       (227,645.01)    

8/16/2021 Brelje & Race Engineers 860.00          860.00          (228,505.01)    
9/16/2021 Brelje & Race Engineers 3,051.25       3,051.25       (231,556.26)    
10/4/2021 Piazza Construction 62,637.05     (3,131.85)      59,505.20     (291,061.46)    

10/15/2021 Brelje & Race Engineers 1,290.00       1,290.00       (292,351.46)    
10/28/2021 Bauer & Associates - Geotech 740.00          740.00          (293,091.46)    
10/31/2021 J Fox Project Mgmnt 2980.82 2,980.82       (296,072.28)    
11/11/2021 Piazza Construction 24,099.60     (1,204.98)      22,894.62     (318,966.90)    
11/15/2021 Brelje & Race Engineers 1,502.50       1,502.50       (320,469.40)    
11/30/2021 Piazza Construction 90,889.96 (4,544.50)      86,345.46     (406,814.86)    
12/3/2021 Bauer & Associates - Geotech 2,486.00 2,486.00       (409,300.86)    

12/14/2021 J Fox Project Mgmnt 5,227.54 5,227.54       (414,528.40)    
12/15/2021 Brelje & Race Engineers 4,682.50 4,682.50       (419,210.90)    
12/25/2021 Staff Costs to December 25 '21 4,380.79 4,380.79       (423,591.69)    

YTD Balance 210,827.26  (8,881.33)     201,945.93   (423,591.69)   Project Cost Total

TENNEY TANK CAPITAL PROJECT REPORT
Inverness Public Utility District



 Inverness Public Utility District 
P.O. Box 469 
50 Inverness Way 
Inverness, CA 94937 
415-669-1414 
  

 

TENNEY TANK PROJECT 
QUARTERLY PROGRESS REPORT 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

 
REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 

12/30/2021 Inverness PUD SWRCB0000000000D1902046 / 
2110001-001C 

Shelley Redding, District Administrator 

STATUS SUMMARY 

 
 
The foundation work for the first tank continued in early October with Geological testing and soil testing, The early rains in October from 
the 17th to the 24th delayed the concrete pad pour until the contractor came out on October 26th to check the foundation excavation and 
rebar forms for the first tank pad. He determined that the rain had not impacted the work done to date and was able to get the concrete 
delivery scheduled for the 28th of October, in between rainstorms.  
 
The concrete delivery was coordinated by our Project Manager after obtaining permission from an adjacent property owner to run 
pumping lines up a hill from an access road to the tank site. The concrete delivery occurred over a nearly 10-hour timeframe.  Upon 
completion of the pad pour and the allowed curing time, geological soil testing was conducted again as well as testing on the concrete. 
The testing was successful, and the tank construction began on November 10th and continued through November 16th. On November 
17th, the contractor met with the project manager to view the new tank and then the Holiday testing was scheduled for the 18th and the 
tank floor vacuum test was conducted on the 19th. The contractor started installing the valves on November 29th. The new tank went 
through the sanitization, bacteriologic testing required in consultation with the regional Waterboards representative for our water system 
and was then brought online over the weekend of December 18th and 19th.  On December 20th, the 2nd tank deconstruction began in 
preparation for the foundation excavation and continued up through December 30th in between the Christmas Holiday and heavy rains. 
 
The project will continue in January with the foundation site work in preparation for the next concrete pour and the next tank installation. 
The contractor is confident that they will be able to complete the project within the allowed timeframe and therefore do not think an 
extension request will be required.   
 
 
 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

 
TASK % DUE DATE  NOTES 

Construction Completion 54% April 30, 2022   

Bid Process 100% February 17, 2021  Completed 

Final Budget Approval 100% 4/28/2021  Approval Received from SWRCB 

Contractor Invoiced 51% 12/31/2021  *Last invoice received 12/3/21 

Schedule Elapsed 80% April 30, 2022  Measured from 8/17/2020 



Page 2 
 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 
CATEGORY SPENT % OF TOTAL EST. BUDGET NOTES 

Construction $274,429.20 51% $539,000  

Contingency $0.00 0% $107,880  

Construction Management $0.00 0% $35,000  

Administration $53,290.00 45% $117,720 For Engineering services thru 
11/21, staff expenses thru 
12/25/21. 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS COMPLIANCE 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENT STATUS DATE(S) 

Spotted Owl Breeding Season Season Ended at 8/31/2021 Feb 1 – Aug 31 

   

ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS COMPLIANCE DESCRIPTIONS 

 
The project, as of August 31, 2021 was outside of the Spotted Owl breeding season.  There is no change to the special conditions at this 
time.  We have reviewed the measures required to address the special conditions.  Construction should be completed outside of the bird 
breeding season.  If construction occurs during the breeding season, we will again conduct a pre-construction survey for nesting birds 
within the project footprint by a qualified biologist no more than one week before ground disturbing activities.  Depending on the outcome 
of the survey, we will implement the appropriate measures as outlined in Exhibit D – Special Conditions.  Additionally, if there is a 
discovery of any archeological significance, we will notify the Project Manager at the State Water Board immediately. 

CHANGE ORDERS 

 
DESCRIPTION OF WORK AMOUNT CHANGE IN 

CONTRACT 
AMOUNT 

SCHEDULE NOTES 

Wage Determination Document 0.00 0.00  Updated document from 
original bid document 

     

     

 
 
PROBLEMS/RESOLUTIONS 

 
Problems encountered: N/A 
 
Proposed Resolution: N/A 
 
Schedule for Resolution: N/A 
 
Status of Previous Problem Resolution: N/A 
 



MARIN EMERGENCY RADIO AUTHORITY 
c/o Town of Corte Madera 

300 Tamalpais Drive 
Corte Madera, CA 94925 

Phone: 415.927.5050 
WWW.MERAONLINE.ORG 

 
 
 

NEXT GENERATION PROJECT 
November 2021 Governing Board UPDATE: 

 
• Construction Bid Packages  
 

Fidato is nearing completion of construction on MERA sites included in Bid Package 1, with Motorola 
installation beginning at EOF. Construction will be wrapping up at Civic Center shortly and then turned over 
to Motorola for additional installation. Construction is currently underway on the third site, Mt. Barnabe with 
the MERA sites included in Bid Package 1A (Dollar Hill, Tiburon and Stewart Point). Bid Package 2 (Big 
Rock, San Pedro and Sonoma Mountain) is expected to be released to bid during winter 2021, based on 
the project schedule provided by Arcadis. The remaining site construction schedule is being revised, 
assessing delays due to changes in engineering subcontractors.  
 

• Proposed Change Orders 
 
Change Orders 1 & 2 for Bid Package 1 were approved by the Governing Board on October 27, 2021. This 
included additional grounding requirements at the Civic Center site location and to address specific needs 
for the Mt. Barnabe redesign. Motorola has now issued specification changes to equipment details and will 
require some off-hours work to accommodate construction, resulting in the proposed Change Order 3 to 
cover these adjustments.  
 
Change Order 1 for Bid Package 1A was approved by the Governing Board on October 27, 2021. This 
covered adjustments at the Tiburon site. Proposed Change Order 2 reflects a $1,924 credit resulting from 
the redesign of the lattice tower structural upgrades at the Dollar Hill site. Proposed Change Order 3 
addresses current structural design deficiencies for the monopole tower at the Stewart Point site. Motorola 
has issued revised drawings for the tower to meet code compliance standards.  
 

• Wi-Fi Reprogramming 
 
Remote Wi-Fi reprogramming of the new Next Gen System equipment has begun. Marin County Fire 
Department has now been completely connected to this feature, allowing for remote system updates via 
Wi-Fi connection. This will allow future radio programming changes to be made faster, more conveniently 
and less expensively than in the past. This feature is now being expanded to the remaining fire agencies. 
Local government and police agencies will have this prior to our cutover to the Next Gen System. More to 
follow. 
 

• Talkgroup Templates 
 
Talkgroup Template design is nearing completion with technical details being added to the plan. MERA is 
currently looking at using over 400 talkgroups and channels across the various users on the Next Gen 
System.  
 
 

Questions? Contact Deputy Executive Officer for the Next Gen System David Jeffries at 
dave@jeffriespsc.com. 

about:blank


MARIN EMERGENCY RADIO AUTHORITY 
c/o Town of Corte Madera 

300 Tamalpais Drive 
Corte Madera, CA 94925 

Phone: 415.927.5050 
WWW.MERAONLINE.ORG 

 
 
 

NEXT GENERATION PROJECT 
December 2021 Governing Board UPDATE: 

 
 Site Construction   

Construction at Bid Package #1 sites is wrapping up, with work being completed at Civic Center 
and Mt. Barnabe, and installation of Motorola equipment has started at EOF. Bid Package #1A 
sites (Tiburon, Dollar Hill and Stewart Point) are also under construction. Bid Package 2 is 
expected to be released in early 2022. The remaining site construction schedule is currently being 
updated. 
 

 Training Committee 
MERA has established a Training Committee, co-chaired by a law enforcement and fire co-chairs. 
The committee is working on draft materials provided by Motorola to ensure they are customized 
to match how the Next Gen System is being set up. 
 

 Connectivity 
Wi-Fi programming of radios has started at some fire agencies. Wi-Fi access for the remaining 
MERA agencies is currently being developed. In addition, details on connectivity for the 
Dispatch Centers and Fire Station Alerting system are also being developed. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Fidato crew installing ground plate at Mr. Barnabe 
 

 
 
 

EOF antenna work by Fidato’s climbing crew 
 
 

Questions? Contact Deputy Executive Officer for the Next Gen System David Jeffries at 
dave@jeffriespsc.com. 



From: Inverness Public Utility District
To: Shelley Redding
Subject: Drought?  What drought?
Date: Wednesday, November 24, 2021 4:51:05 PM

 

 

That’s the question we’ve been asking as we gauge our tank levels (full-up!) and
we tally the rain received already this year (copious!).

On the other hand, federal climate experts at the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration reported last week that the La Niña in the equatorial
Pacific is strengthening, which likely promises that drought conditions will prevail in
California through February, historically our area’s wettest months.

In essence, they concluded, the opportunity for drought recovery is lost.

With this sort of ominous uncertainty, we feel we must keep our water shortage
emergency in effect for at least the next 90 days. By late February or so, we’ll be
better able to evaluate our water availability prospects for next year’s dry season
and make a better informed decision on how to proceed.

In the meantime, it is important that we underscore just how grateful we all are
here, Directors and staff alike, for your supportive response to conserving water
during these past months. You’ve cut overall usage by almost 45 percent -- at a
time when other water agencies are struggling to achieve even 15 and 20 percent
reductions!

So many of you have elected to participate in our Flume program that, according
to Flume, we have the highest percentage of Flume-connected customers of any
water system in the entire country.

There was record-setting participation in Chipper Days this year, and our Fire
Department is heartened by the efforts of so many of you to create defensible
space and remove hazardous trees.

It all adds up to this: We know we can count on our residents to face up to the
challenges of both drought and wildfire threat and to pull together as a community
to get through whatever is thrown at us. Thank you!

P.S. You may have noticed that the tank levels sign in the village center seems to
be stuck at around 94 percent. That’s because anything above 93 or 94 percent
shows that we are managing to keep the tanks essentially full. If we get lucky and
our area experiences a normal winter rainfall pattern over the next two to three
months, the sign will likely stay at around 94%. But, if the weather turns dry and
the percentage on the sign begins to drop, that will be the signal that things are not
looking good for next year. You can track this data daily in more detail on our
website (invernesspud.org). On our homepage, click on the header “Today’s

 

mailto:shelley.redding@invernesspud.org
mailto:shelley.redding@invernesspud.org
https://zwwr6w7p.r.us-west-2.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fwww.invernesspud.org/1/0101017d5492fea7-9463e69e-f29a-4aef-985e-d3bb2fe85e10-000000/H-_gHUpn7stwzfh7fsjmJcb12x8=245


Water System Tank Levels.“   

Inverness Public Utility District
PO Box 469, Inverness, CA, 94937

We know your time is valuable and we only want to send information you are interested in. If
you decide you no longer want to receive emails from us, you can unsubscribe.

Powered by Streamline.

https://zwwr6w7p.r.us-west-2.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fwww.invernesspud.org%2Fengage%2Funsubscribe%2F739c52f8-9b54-464a-a738-b4bff811f30a/1/0101017d5492fea7-9463e69e-f29a-4aef-985e-d3bb2fe85e10-000000/VX41brmvMzh9J1XCc-Ntc9Zml68=245
http://zwwr6w7p.r.us-west-2.awstrack.me/L0/http:%2F%2Fwww.getstreamline.com/1/0101017d5492fea7-9463e69e-f29a-4aef-985e-d3bb2fe85e10-000000/CyVjTK39DnybUom5nq89nePIYFs=245


From: Inverness Public Utility District
To: Shelley Redding
Subject: Our 2021 Year-End Wrap-Up
Date: Thursday, December 30, 2021 1:00:30 PM

 

Saying goodbye is never easy, but in the case of 2021, we at IPUD are happy to
send it on its way down memory lane. This is not to say that we have not met each
challenge with determination and resolve, but surely we would all agree that we
can do with a little "less" in 2022.

The drought and pandemic presented a unique situation for the Water System as
many sought refuge in our special spot. But we had no doubt that with the
tremendous cooperation of the folks of our community we would be able to
manage the diminishing availability of water and avoid the extreme step of
rationing. Together with the drought came the extreme threat of fire, which
required heightened awareness and vigilance. Our community once again was
attentive, alert, and responsive.

 The Rainfall Enigma

We wish we had a crystal ball to tell us how the current rainfall year is going to turn
out. As we close in on the rainfall year’s halfway point, the auguries are looking
more and more promising with the passing of each soggy day. Inverness’s 91-year
average for the first half of the rainfall year (July – December) is 14.15 inches (full-
year average is 37.32 inches). Already this year, as of December 29, we’ve seen
24.77 inches, which eclipses decisively last year’s anemic full-year total of just
15.51 inches (which made 2020-21 the driest year on record in Inverness).

The question on everyone’s mind is what all this encouraging news tells us about
the prospects for easing the drought. So far, the rain has fallen in a pattern that
looks to be well-suited for recharging our watershed; the rain has been slow and
steady, falling so that it soaks in rather than as gully-washers that carry most of
the downfall into Tomales Bay. We’re reserving judgment on the effect this early-
season rain will have during the dry months next summer and fall. But we are
becoming cautiously more hopeful that by spring we may be able to consider
relaxing the drought restrictions that continue to be in effect.

Tenney Tanks Replacement Project

This important project to replace two 38-year-old wooden tanks at the key Tenney
site on the upper Mesa got underway in May and was scheduled to be completed
in October. However, crippling supply-chain issues, as well as a sudden change in
the engineering standards for water tank foundations, delayed the project. Work is
now back on track, and a new 52,700-gallon bolted-steel tank (replacing a 10,000-
gallon tank) went into service shortly before Christmas. The next phase, to replace
the old 60,000-gallon tank with a 43,700-gallon tank, is now in progress. We
expect the entire project to wrap up in 60-90 days, increasing total storage at the
site from 70,000 gallons to 96,400 gallons. Preliminary projections indicate that

 

mailto:shelley.redding@invernesspud.org
mailto:shelley.redding@invernesspud.org
https://zwwr6w7p.r.us-west-2.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fwww.invernesspud.org/1/0101017e0d249f88-577ed2e7-683d-4f6d-bcc0-20ace7ee53ba-000000/vs2a3tFPUpDrMyCOr6I3CaBULoA=250


total cost will be noticeably below our $800,000 borrowing limit, thus reducing both
long-term debt and interest costs.

Looking for Additional Supply

The IPUD Board initiated in August an outreach to Marin Municipal Water District
about their plans to import during dry years up to 4.9 billion gallons of water a year
from the Sacramento Valley. We asked about their willingness to set aside a tiny
fraction of that water to sell to us during dry periods. We calculated our maximum
annual need at 40 acre-feet (13 million gallons), or about the amount of water that
would flow through the proposed pipeline across the Richmond-San Rafael Bridge
during 1/375th of each second (!). Our Board’s letter was well received, but the
MMWD Board has not yet made a final decision on proceeding with the project.

In the meantime, we have moved forward with the State permitting process to put
a new well in Third Valley into service. This is a very low-yield well, but the intent is
to have it available when it is essential that we squeeze out every little bit of
additional water.

New Fire Department Volunteers

For the first time in years, the Fire Department has welcomed so many new
volunteers into its ranks that weekly training sessions for the newcomers have
been underway since early in the year. The roster now stands at 24 members, and
most promising is that the trainee crew is dominated by young folks.

Inverness Disaster Council

The Inverness Disaster Council, which functions under the guidance of the
Inverness Fire Chief, has been revitalized under the spirited guidance of Sally
Fairfax and Connie Morse. They have worked tirelessly to recruit and train
volunteers, improve resources, update resident information, and establish
procedures for a range of potential disaster response scenarios.

Marin Wildfire Prevention Authority

Our Fire Department continues to work closely with the newly-established MWPA
and local community members to take full advantage of the opportunities
membership in the MWPA provides to undertake fire protection projects in our
neighborhoods. A logjam that surfaced was the requirement that even minor
maintenance-type projects require environmental review. We supported MWPA’s
decision to add a CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) specialist on its
staff. As a volunteer fire department, our limited staffing is a barrier to pursuing
CEQA clearances, so we hope that having CEQA handled at the MWPA level will
expedite the many projects we have in mind for clearing evacuation routes,
creating a network of shaded fuel breaks, improving defensible space, supporting
home-hardening endeavors, etc.

Firewise Inverness

The Inverness Fire Department and IPUD supported the effort spearheaded by the
Inverness Association to have Inverness designated by Firewise USA as a
Firewise community. The local application was approved recently, enabling
Inverness to join with 70 other Firewise communities in Marin County. The



Inverness Firewise organization is forming now, and volunteers are needed. For
information and to sign up to help, contact Inverness Association Director Jerry
Meral at jerrymeral@gmail.com.

Inverness Public Utility District
PO Box 469, Inverness, CA, 94937

We know your time is valuable and we only want to send information you are interested in. If
you decide you no longer want to receive emails from us, you can unsubscribe.

Powered by Streamline.

http://zwwr6w7p.r.us-west-2.awstrack.me/L0/jerrymeral@gmail.com/1/0101017e0d249f88-577ed2e7-683d-4f6d-bcc0-20ace7ee53ba-000000/daVhL8hJU_Xjxus9JmxuV24UZ_0=250
https://zwwr6w7p.r.us-west-2.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fwww.invernesspud.org%2Fengage%2Funsubscribe%2F6fc20db5-b316-4afc-a980-c6ef1f0a62c8/1/0101017e0d249f88-577ed2e7-683d-4f6d-bcc0-20ace7ee53ba-000000/fm9IiF1VdtYndJNPebu1F1x8w8I=250
http://zwwr6w7p.r.us-west-2.awstrack.me/L0/http:%2F%2Fwww.getstreamline.com/1/0101017e0d249f88-577ed2e7-683d-4f6d-bcc0-20ace7ee53ba-000000/6kIlJ1sEg37SdbEC7KXYejmT3EA=250


 

 

 

 



              Inverness Public Utility District 
Board Meeting November 17, 2021 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 7 

Water System Report 
October, November, and December 2021 
  Water System Report 
 



S:\2Water\2 VUB\i AR bimonthly reports\20211231 AR ReportFormatted.docx 

Water Customer Accounts Receivable Totals, November/December 2021 
 
1. The Accounts Receivable balance on Nov. 1, 2021, consisted of:  

 Current balances (from bills sent out on October 27 ) 85,879.50 
 Past-due balances (2.4%)    2,116.21 

 Total Accounts Receivable balance on Nov. 1, 2021: 87,995.71  

2. During Nov/Dec, we received the following payments from our customers: 
Electronic payments:  57,628.00 (70.4%)  
Payments by check:  24,195.34 (29.6%)  

Total payments received: -   81,823.34 

3. During Nov/Dec, we posted the following charges to our customers’ accounts: 
Write-offs: --  
Adjustments: --  
Basic charges (future): 76,987.50 (517 Basic charges billed 12/23 for Jan/Feb*) 
Drought surcharges (future): 15,397.50 (517 Drought surcharges billed 12/23 for Jan/Feb*) 
X-C charges (future): 216.00 (18 Cross-Connection charges billed 12/23 for Jan/Feb) 
Usage charges: 3,262.00 (Usage charges billed 12/23 for 10/22/21 to 12/17/21†) 
Misc. charges: 200.00  
Refused payments: --  
Refunds:      134.23 (3 closed account credit balance refunds) 

Total charges posted: +   96,196.73 
 
4. Thus, the Accounts Receivable balance on December 31 (the end of the period) was: 102,369.60 
 (of which 5.9%, or $6,306.60, is past due) 

 
* Bimonthly Basic Charges (for Jan/Feb):  512 customers @ $150.00; 3 Lifeline customers at $37.50; 1 
Lifeline customer at $75.00; 1 suspended customer @ $0.00 

† Total billed usage was $4,975.00, less one credit for $1,713.00 (for prior-period leak adjustment). 
 
Reconciliation with BofA checking account: 
There were no deposits in transit on 12/31/2021. Thus, the A/R balance on the District’s books as of 
12/31 should also be $102,369.60. 
 
Scheduled ACH receipts:  $51,485.89 on January 13, 2022 (from 278 customers, which is 53.8% of the 
total of 517 customers). 
A temporary security debit to IPUD’s checking account in the amount of $51,485.89 will be made on or 
about January 11, 2022 (subject to adjustments). 
 
Report on Number of Discontinuations of Residential Service (pursuant to paragraph (g) of IPUD Water 
System Regulation 303 and in compliance with Chapter 6, “Discontinuation of Residential Water 
Service,” of Part 12, Division 104, of the Health and Safety Code (HSC) of the State of California) 

Period covered:  Nov/Dec 2021 
Number of residential services discontinued for inability to pay during the covered period:  0 
Number of residential services discontinued for inability to pay during a previous period and still 

on discontinued status at the close of the covered period:  1 



I n v e r n e s s  P u b l i c  U t i l i t y  D i s t r i c t  
Fire Departm ent     ●     Water System  

Post  O ff ice B ox 469  
Inverness,  CA   94937  

(415) 669-1414   ●    Fax (415) 669-1010   ●    info@invernesspud.org  

   .                       October 2021 water system report     Kenneth Fox, T3, Senior Water Operator  

O c t o b e r  2 0 2 1    –  W A T E R  S Y S T E M  R E P O R T  –       
                                                   |         End of October Stream-Flows         |      

 ( * gpd = gallons per day; gpm = gallons per minute; ppm=parts per million)                      October average 48.2 kpd => 33.5 gpm 
Water Quality                                     Note:  useage decrease  systemwide, escept Colby & Stockstill zones  

All sources Ultra and Nano filtered; chlorine and turbidity correct continuously; no positive coliform bacteria samples from distribution sample 
grabs.  Samples of distribution water tested twice monthly and influent raw water are being collected once a month for lab analysis of coliform 
content.   Average CL2 dose at F1® 0.63   parts per million (ppm);  F3® > 0.5 ppm    

Major Activities   
• Monthly reports sent to CA RWQCB 
• Filter Plants: F1 Chemical cleaning all 4 units,  
• F3 CIP cleaning of both Ultra and Nano unit.  Water  heater failed during end process. (water heater is still on warranty) 
• F2 feeding Colby system from Tenney distribution most of month while removing debris and reducing leaks in Colby 

wood tanks.  Leaks were persistent, augmenting increased use within Colby system from increased visitors in town 
• Removed weir at L1.  Both L1 and L2 lower intakes out of service as result of higher streamflows and conservation 
• Sign installed downtown indicating Water system 7-day tank levels 
• Working on D7 trail, third valley  
• Several reports of leaks and customers requested us to check for leaks  
• Well 5 tested, running to waste F3 for much of month 

 

End of October Statistics Oct. 2021 Oct.  2020   DIVERSION  
  OCT. 

    GPM  

 Oct 2021      
  GPD 

Oct. 2020  
GPM 

R A I N F A L L  @  F 1  Recorded at F1  (@ F1) D1          21   30,240          2.5 
Monthly total (in inches)    11.40”        0.09”        D2          23  33,120        9.5+ 
For Year 7/1//2021 ->  thru Oct         12.11”         0.39” D3           23  33,120    8- 

Avg. yearly since 1925 (inches)         37.32”  37.57” D4          46   66,240          3- 
*Comparative EoM Streamflow        August 2021  Sept. 2021        D5           45   64,800   9.5-  
 *upper diversions total gpd ->         57,600    61,920 D6          46   66,240        9.5- 
Jun2020>July21 (gpm)63½;54;119½;  
72;112;155;110;102½,68;53½;55;40       40 gpm   43 gpm D7    32   46,080     8- 

MONTHLY PRODUCTION:    July 2021 Aug 2021  D8          15   21,600          2+ 

Sept 2021:  1,544,300 gal 2,177,400 gal   1,924,800  TOTALS--  251  361,440  52.0 gpm 

51,477   Avg. gallons per day -   
35.7   Avg. gallons per minute - 

   70,239gal 
48.8 gpm   

   62,100gal 
43.1 gpm 

O C T O B E R  
S Y S T E M  P A T T E R N S   

SOURCES USED     (Oct 2021)  (Oct 2020)  USE  B Y    Z O N E   2021    2020  
1st Valley High Intakes (D 1,2,3)   35 % 27 % Colby -   779,200 +    52% +  38.4 % 
2nd Valley High Intakes (D 4,5,6)   24 % 21 % Tenney -   472.400 -         30% -     36.2% 
3rd Valley   Intakes  (2)  (D 7,8)            10 %  13 % Conner -     19,500 -      2%  -    3+ % 
1st Valley lower intake    11 %  16 % Stockstill -    148,400 +    10% +  14.0 % 
2nd Valley lower (L2 )    12 %  18 % Sea Haven     94,600 -      6%  -   8.4 % 
Wells   (W1, W3,W4)      8 %    5% TOTAL Prod  1,544,300- 100.0 %  100.0 % 
TOTAL 100 %  100.0 % 



I n v e r n e s s  P u b l i c  U t i l i t y  D i s t r i c t  
Fire Departm ent     ●     Water System  

Post  O ff ice B ox 469  
Inverness,  CA   94937  

(415) 669-1414   ●    Fax (415) 669-1010   ●    info@invernesspud.org  

   .                       November 2021 water system report     Kenneth Fox, T3, Senior Water Operator  

N o v e m b e r  2 0 2 1    –  W A T E R  S Y S T E M  R E P O R T  –       
                                                   |         End of November Stream-Flows         |      

 ( * gpd = gallons per day; gpm = gallons per minute; ppm=parts per million)               November Production 42,360 gal/day => 29.4 gpm 
Water Quality                              Note:  usage decrease  systemwide    

All sources Ultra and Nano filtered; chlorine and turbidity correct continuously; no positive coliform bacteria samples from distribution sample 
grabs.  Samples of distribution water tested twice monthly and influent raw water are being collected once a month for lab analysis of coliform 
content.   Average CL2 dose at F1® 0.70   parts per million (ppm);  F3® > 0.8 ppm 

Major Activities   
• Monthly reports sent to CA RWQCB 
• Filter Plants: F3 still dealing with manufacturer re: failed water heater.  Well 5 at F3 exercised occasionally  
• Reducing persistent leaks in Colby wood tanks continued with some success.  Utilizing transfer to Colby at F2  
• Increased stream flows allowing resumed flushing of Via de la Vista old steel main and Kehoe spur  
• Continued work on water bars and  brush clearing of watershed roads 
• New Tenney Tank foundation finished and tank constructed by Superior Tank company. Should be in service next month  
• Procured battery powered cordless chain saw  
• Leak discovered on Inverness Way at Glen way.  
• End of Laurel Way fire hydrant buried by small slump. Excavated and erected new retaining wall.   
• Conner tank:  installed new locks on container and equipment to keep more secure 
• L-1 electric service to shed knocked out by fallen tree. Shed weather head needs repair  

 

End of November Statistics 
Nov. 2021 Nov.  2020   DIVERSION  

  NOV. 
    GPM  

  2021      
  GPD 

Nov. 
2020  
GPM 

R A I N F A L L  @  F 1  Recorded at F1  (@ F1) D1          18   25,920          4 
Monthly total (in inches)     2.81”        2.02”        D2          17.5   25,200        12 
For Year 7/1//2021 ->  thru Nov         14.92”         2.41” D3           17.5   25,200  10 

Avg. yearly since 1925 (inches)         37.32”  37.57” D4          27    38,880          5 
*Comparative EofM Streamflow        Sept. 2021  Oct. 2021        D5           28   40,320   12  
 *upper diversions total gpd ->         61,920   361,440 D6          24   34,560        12 

July2020>Aug21 (gpm) 54;119½;72; 
112;155;110;102½,68;53½;55;40;40       43 gpm  251 gpm D7    19   27,360     12 

MONTHLY PRODUCTION Trends:    Sept 2021 Aug 2021  D8          14   20,160          5 

Oct 2021:  1,495,100 gal 1,544,300 gal   1,924,800  TOTALS--  165  237,600     72 gpm 

48,200   Avg. gallons per day -   
33.5   Avg. gallons per minute - 

   51,500 gal 
35.7 gpm   

   62,100gal 
43.1 gpm 

N O V E M B E R  
S Y S T E M  P A T T E R N S   

SOURCES USED     (Nov 2021)  (Nov 2020)  USE  B Y    Z O N E   2021    2020  
1st Valley High Intakes (D 2,3)   56 % 27 % Colby -   597,300 -    47%   35.2 % 
2nd Valley High Intakes (D 6)   29 % 21 % Tenney -   437.800 -         34% -     37.8% 
3rd Valley   Intakes  (2)  (D 7)            15 %  13 % Conner +     33,100 +      3% +   4.4 % 
1st Valley lower intake     0 %  16 % Stockstill -    118,100 -     9% -  14.4 % 
2nd Valley lower (L2 )      0 %  18 % Sea Haven     84,500 -      7% -    8.2 % 
Wells   (W1, W3,W4)     nil %    5% TOTAL Prod  1,270,800- 100.0 %  100.0 % 
TOTAL 100 %  100.0 % 



I n v e r n e s s  P u b l i c  U t i l i t y  D i s t r i c t  
Fire Departm ent     ●     Water System  

Post  O ff ice B ox 469  
Inverness,  CA   94937  

(415) 669-1414   ●    Fax (415) 669-1010   ●    info@invernesspud.org  

   .                       December 2021 water system report     Kenneth Fox, T3, Senior Water Operator  

   D e c e m b e r  2 0 2 1    –  W A T E R  S Y S T E M  R E P O R T         
                                                   |         End of December  Stream-Flows         |      

 ( * gpd = gallons per day; gpm = gallons per minute; ppm=parts per million)               December Production 40,994 gal/day => 28.5 gpm 
Water Quality                              Note:  slight daily usage decrease   

All sources Ultra and Nano filtered; chlorine and turbidity correct continuously; no positive coliform bacteria samples from distribution sample 
grabs.  Samples of distribution water tested twice monthly and influent raw water are being collected once a month for lab analysis of coliform 
content.   Average CL2 dose at F1® 0.6   parts per million (ppm);  F3® > +.9 ppm 

Major Activities   
• Monthly reports sent to CA RWQCB 
• Filter Plants: F1: Both Ultra Units cleaned (CIP) Changed prefilters on Nano Units 

       F3: CIP Ultra Unit.  Still dealing with manufacturer of failed water heater, which continues to fail. 
              Break tank between Ultra and Nano units at F3 disinfected. 

• Reducing leaks in Colby wood tanks continued with more success.   
• Continued work on water bars and  brush clearing of watershed roads 
• New Tenney Tank #1 finished. Disinfected and tested ok and subsequently  put into service.  Moved solar array and 

 telemetry equipment.  40 year-old 60,000 wooden tank out of service and deconstruction commenced   
• Service (blue polybutylene) replaced with copper service by contractor Piazza at 125 Inverness Way, near Glen way  
• Samples grabbed from all three valley sources for General physical chemical and Total Organic Carbon testing  
• Customer complaint of low pressure/flow investigated. Residence has old and occluded pipes 
• All customer meters read  

 

End of December Statistics Dec. 2021 Dec.  2020   DIVERSION  
  DEC. 

    GPM  

  2021      
  GPD 

Dec. 2020  
GPM 

R A I N F A L L  @  F 1  Recorded at F1  (@ F1) D1     @ 90 129,600          9 
Monthly total (in inches) 8.17    8.17”        2.88”        D2        150 216,000        16 
For Year 7/1//2021 ->  thru Dec 2021         23.09”         5.29” D3         105 151,200  15 

Avg. yearly since 1925 (inches)         37.32”  37.57” D4        130 187,200         10 
*Comparative EofM Streamflow        Oct. 2021  Nov. 2021        D5          150 216,000   20  
 *upper diversions total gpd ->        361,440   237,600 D6         150 216,000        19 
Sep2020>Sept 21 gpm)119½;72;112; 
155;110;102½,68;53½;55;40;40;43      251 gpm  165 gpm D7   160 230,400     14 

MONTHLY PRODUCTION Trends:    Oct 2021 Sept 2021  D8      @ 40   57,600          9 

Nov 2021:  1,270,800 gal 1,495,100 gal   1,544,300  TOTALS--         975 1,404,000 112 gpm 

42,360   Avg. gallons per day    
       29.4   Average gpm 

   48,200 gal 
33.5 gpm   

  51,500 gal 
35.7 gpm 

D E C E M B E R  
S Y S T E M  U S A G E  P A T T E R N S   

SOURCES USED     (Dec 2021)  (Dec 2020)  USE  B Y    Z O N E   2021     2020  
1st Valley High Intakes (D 3,2)   70 % 29 % Colby -  523,800 - -    40.4%   32.2 % 
2nd Valley High Intakes (D 6)   13 %  31 % Tenney -  524.800 ++       40.5%    43.9% 
3rd Valley   Intakes      (D 7)            17 %  16 % Conner +    19,400 - -     1.5%   3.1 % 
1st Valley lower intake     0 %   19 % Stockstill -  118,800 +     9.2%  13.7 % 
2nd Valley lower (L2 )      0 %    0 % Sea Haven 108,500++     8.4%    7.1 % 
Wells   (W1, W3,W4)     nil %    5% TOTAL Prod 1,295,300+   100 %  100.0 % 
TOTAL 100 %  100.0 % 



July August September October November December
Streamflow 2019 374,400  267,840  208,800          172,080        207,360        482,400            
Streamflow 2020 135,360  120,960  91,440            74,800          103,680        161,280            

Streamflow 2021 57,600    57,600    51,477            361,440        237,600        1,404,000         

July August September October November December
Production 2019 104,300  104,300  92,297            92,848          82,027          73,739              
Production 2020 104,587  95,971    86,380            84,580          71,333          67,210              

Production 2021 70,239    62,100    61,920            48,200          42,360          40,994              

IPUD Water Data Charts 3-year comparison
July - December

37
4,

40
0 

26
7,

84
0 

20
8,

80
0 

17
2,

08
0 

20
7,

36
0 48

2,
40

0 

13
5,

36
0 

12
0,

96
0 

91
,4

40
 

74
,8

00
 

10
3,

68
0 

16
1,

28
0 

57
,6

00
 

57
,6

00
 

51
,4

77
 36

1,
44

0 

23
7,

60
0 

1,
40

4,
00

0 

J U L Y A U G U S T S E P T E M B E R O C T O B E R N O V E M B E R D E C E M B E R

STREAMFLOWS 3-YEAR COMPARISON (GALLONS/DAY)

Streamflow 2019 Streamflow 2020 Streamflow 2021
10

4,
30

0 

10
4,

30
0 

92
,2

97
 

92
,8

48
 

82
,0

27
 

73
,7

39
 

10
4,

58
7 

95
,9

71
 

86
,3

80
 

84
,5

80
 

71
,3

33
 

67
,2

10
 

70
,2

39
 

62
,1

00
 

61
,9

20
 

48
,2

00
 

42
,3

60
 

40
,9

94
 

J U L Y A U G U S T S E P T E M B E R O C T O B E R N O V E M B E R D E C E M B E R

PRODUCTION 3-YEAR COMPARISON (GALLONS/DAY)

Production 2019 Production 2020 Production 2021



Jul/Aug Sep/Oct Nov/Dec Jan/Feb Mar/Apr May/Jun

 Current Year - 2021/22 109.2 81.4 72.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

 Last Year - 2020/21 170.9 148.4 107.5 93.6 99.9 116.1

 31-Year Average 211.1 183.0 123.3 109.2 115.8 167.7

0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

250.0

G
al

lo
n

s 
pe

r 
D

ay
 p

er
 A

ct
iv

e 
C

u
st

om
er

 C
on

n
ec

tio
n

 (
in

cl
u

di
n

g 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 c

u
st

om
er

s)

Inverness Public Utility District Water System

Average Daily Water Usage per Active Customer

 Current Year - 2021/22

 Last Year - 2020/21

 31-Year Average



              Inverness Public Utility District 
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 8 

Fire Department Report 
November and December 2021 

 

 

 



              Inverness Public Utility District 
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 9 

Review and Approve Expenditures 
• November & December 2021 Expenditures 
• November & December 2021 Credit Card Charges 

 
 

 



Date Num Name Memo Amount

Nov 21
11/01/2021 eft BB & T- CPS Operations 10/1/21 - 10/31/21 AR Box -1.56
11/01/2021 EFT PG&E Account 9408018479-2 Utilities 9/20 - 10/18/21 -3,168.00
11/02/2021 14330 U. S. Bank Corporate Payment Syste... Cal Card -1,077.63
11/02/2021 EFT Paychex S125 Fee -40.00
11/03/2021 EFT CalPERS Health Health Insurance November 2021 -8,554.20
11/03/2021 EFT Bank of America Service charges -157.55
11/04/2021 EFT CalPERS - Retirement October 2021 -4,818.00
11/05/2021 14331 Bauer Associates Tenney Tank - Geotech Engineering Services -740.00
11/05/2021 14332 Building Supply Center Inverness PUD Account 155 -102.30
11/05/2021 14333 Hach Company Customer # 108425 -108.74
11/05/2021 14334 Horizon Cable TV Inc. 005-003907 -90.79
11/05/2021 14335 John's Dairy Equipment & Supply, Inc. Chemicals -95.95
11/05/2021 14336 Quill Corporation VOID:Check Lost - Paid Online-Stop Payment ... 0.00
11/05/2021 14337 Void 0.00
11/05/2021 14338 Streamline November 2021 Website w/Engage -260.00
11/09/2021 14339 Brelje and Race Laboratories, Inc. Lab Testing Fees -385.00
11/09/2021 14340 Cheda's Garage Jeep - Repairs -1,041.56
11/09/2021 14341 CORE October services -270.00
11/09/2021 14342 Flume, Inc. Rebate for Flume 2 Smart Home Water Meter -102.84
11/09/2021 14343 McPhail Fuel Co. Account INVPUD 143814 -745.38
11/09/2021 14344 Quill Corporation Office Supplies -183.93
11/10/2021 EFT Diversified Technology Billing Service-New Rate -705.00
11/15/2021 14345 Cassidy, Russell, Payroll 10/26 - 11/10/2021 -993.71
11/15/2021 PR 01 Tax Payment Payroll 11/15/2021 -6,699.12
11/15/2021 PR 01 Direct Deposit Payroll 11/15/2021 -14,810.96
11/15/2021 PR 01 Leyva, Jacob Garnishment -402.00
11/15/2021 EFT Paychex Payroll Fees -199.60
11/19/2021 14346 Amazon Business Account A10CPJEJGNVN6Y -62.92
11/19/2021 14347 AT&T CalNet Telemetry and Phones -453.37
11/19/2021 14348 Brelje & Race Engineers Project # 02630.05 -1,502.50
11/19/2021 14349 Connie Morse Disaster Council Reimbursement -338.02
11/19/2021 14350 Flume, Inc. Rebate for Flume 2 Smart Home Water Meter -617.03
11/19/2021 14351 Hach Company Customer # 108425 -221.42
11/19/2021 14352 Marin County Department of Public W... Encroachment Permit Fee 2022 -490.00
11/19/2021 14353 PG&E VOID: Paid online 0.00
11/19/2021 14354 Piazza Construction Contract No. 2630.05 -22,894.62
11/19/2021 14355 Verizon Wireless Account 942336110-00001 Cell Phones -193.96
11/22/2021 14356 DeCarli's Account # 2-45217 -487.82
11/22/2021 14357 Fire Safety Supply Inc. 1 Extinguisher -71.41
11/22/2021 14358 Quill Corporation Office Supplies -215.71
11/26/2021 H2O Customers Armin Rosencranz returned payment -434.00
11/26/2021 H2O Customers Tom Malarkey returned payment -149.00
11/26/2021 H2O Customers Paul Ekman returned payment -151.00
11/26/2021 14359 Amazon Business Account A10CPJEJGNVN6Y -143.29
11/26/2021 14360 UPS Shipping Fees -22.17
11/30/2021 14361 Cassidy, Russell, Payroll 11/11 - 11/25/2021 -993.70
11/30/2021 PR 02 Tax Payment Payroll 11/30/2021 -6,855.37
11/30/2021 PR 02 Direct Deposit Payroll 11/30/2021 -14,451.93
11/30/2021 PR 02 Leyva, Jacob Garnishment -402.00
11/30/2021 14362 CORRPRO Customer # 4259650 Contract No. 81612 3/1/... -650.00
11/30/2021 14363 U. S. Bank Corporate Payment Syste... Cal Card -3,600.98
11/30/2021 EFT Paychex Payroll Fees -199.60
11/30/2021 EFT Bank of America Service charges -787.19

Nov 21 -102,142.83

1:25 PM Inverness PUD
12/28/21 Monthly Expense Ledger Report
Accrual Basis November 2021

Page 1



Date Num Name Memo Amount

Dec 21
12/01/2021 EFT Paychex Payroll Fees - S125 -40.00
12/01/2021 EFT AT&T  U-verse Internet November 2021 -69.55
12/03/2021 EFT CalPERS Health December 2021 Health -8,554.20
12/06/2021 EFT Quill Corporation Office Supplies -515.47
12/07/2021 14364 Bauer Associates Tenney Tank - Geotech Svcs-Concrete Test Tank 1 -2,486.00
12/07/2021 14365 Building Supply Center Firehouse Replacement Doors (2) -648.67
12/07/2021 14366 Frey's Automotive, Inc. Jeep and 335 Smog -108.50
12/07/2021 14367 Friedman's Home Improvement Customer # 343 -378.67
12/07/2021 14368 Grainger Batteries -98.84
12/07/2021 14369 Marin County Central Collecti... Customer # 21595 -1,075.80
12/07/2021 14370 Piazza Construction Contract No. 2630.05 -86,345.46
12/07/2021 14371 Point Reyes Light Publishing ... Legal Notice Ord 104-2021 -300.00
12/07/2021 14372 Streamline December 2021 Website w/Engage -260.00
12/07/2021 14373 Good & Clean, Inc. Janitorial Services - November -220.00
12/07/2021 14374 Horizon Cable TV Inc. 005-003907 -89.29
12/07/2021 14375 R.J. Ricciardi, Inc., CPAs Audit and Accounting Fees -5,225.00
12/07/2021 EFT PG&E Account 9408018479-2 Utilities 10/19 - 11/16/21 -2,467.51
12/09/2021 14376 Riley F. Hurd III Prop 218 review - Water Rates -560.00
12/10/2021 EFT CalPERS - Retirement November 2021 -4,468.80
12/10/2021 EFT BB & T- CPS Operations 11/1/21 - 11/30/21 AR Box -10.53
12/10/2021 EFT Diversified Technology Billing Service-New Rate -705.00
12/10/2021 14377 AT&T CalNet Telemetry and Phone -458.21
12/10/2021 14378 Pace Supply Corp. Customer# 09035-00 -790.23
12/10/2021 14379 Barbara Gault Closed account refund -68.29
12/10/2021 14380 Cheda's Garage 2007 Chevy -432.87
12/15/2021 PR 121... To record 12/15/21 payroll -6,497.57
12/15/2021 PR 121... To record 12/15/21 payroll -15,028.07
12/15/2021 PR 121... Leyva, Jacob Deduction - child support -402.00
12/15/2021 EFT Paychex Payroll Fees - S125 -199.60
12/17/2021 14381 Amazon Business Account A10CPJEJGNVN6Y -238.58
12/17/2021 14382 Brelje and Race Laboratories,... Bac-T's -294.00
12/17/2021 14383 CORE October services -270.00
12/17/2021 14384 Grainger Supplies -19.80
12/17/2021 14385 Verizon Wireless Account 942336110-00001 Cell Phones -202.50
12/17/2021 14386 Gordon Bennett Closed account refund -42.39
12/17/2021 14387 Pitts, Roy To replace check no. 14146 issued on 5/28/21 -100.00
12/17/2021 14388 Dick Lemon Closed account refund 119-010-19 -16.68
12/27/2021 14389 Brelje & Race Engineers Project # 02630.05 -4,682.50
12/27/2021 14390 Frey's Automotive, Inc. 300 Smog -51.75
12/27/2021 14391 Grainger Supplies -298.90
12/27/2021 14392 Marin County Central Collecti... Customer # 21595 -1,106.23
12/27/2021 14393 Quill Corporation Account # 645751 -24.67
12/27/2021 U. S. Bank Corporate Payme... VOID: printed in error 0.00
12/27/2021 14395 Palace Market 20 $75.00 Gift Cards - Volunteer Appreciation -1,500.00
12/28/2021 14396 Tom Fox 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -170.00
12/28/2021 14397 Cassel, Brian 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -100.00
12/28/2021 14398 Eubank, Burton 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -100.00
12/28/2021 14399 Brett Miller 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -30.00
12/28/2021 14400 Holton, Dennis 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -140.00
12/28/2021 14401 Pitts, Roy 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -110.00
12/28/2021 14402 David Briggs 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -150.00
12/28/2021 14403 David Wright 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -60.00
12/28/2021 14404 Tim Olson 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -180.00
12/28/2021 14405 Nikki Spencer 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -140.00
12/28/2021 14406 Greg Eastman 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -280.00
12/28/2021 14407 Jay Borodic 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -200.00
12/28/2021 14408 Fiona Pettigrew 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -140.00
12/28/2021 14409 Jack Von Thaer 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -20.00
12/28/2021 14410 Liam Riley 2021 Volunteer Training Stipend -70.00
12/31/2021 PR To record 12/11/21 - 12/25/21 payroll (pay date 12/... -6,903.55
12/31/2021 PR To record 12/11/21 - 12/25/21 payroll (pay date 12/... -15,656.61
12/31/2021 PR Leyva, Jacob Child support deduction -402.00
12/31/2021 14411 Mary Kroninger Closed account credit balance refund -23.55
12/31/2021 14412 Horizon Cable TV Inc. 005-003907 -90.04
12/31/2021 14413 SWRCB Accounting Office 7/1/21 - 6/30/22  Water System Connection Fees/ ... -4,303.44
12/31/2021 14414 U. S. Postal Service PO Box Fee/ 469 94937 -210.00

Dec 21 -176,831.32

12:54 PM Inverness PUD

01/11/22 Monthly Expense Ledger Report
Accrual Basis December 2021

Page 1



Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Split Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 481.54
Cleared Transactions

Charges and Cash Advances - 14 items
Credit Card Charge 10/26/2021 1026 Palace Market Volunteer Training / Drill X 850-01 · Volunteer Training -64.08 -64.08
Credit Card Charge 10/27/2021 112-6637248 Amazon Boot Jack (3) X 845-01 · Supplies and Inventory -32.43 -96.51
Credit Card Charge 10/27/2021 112-5623003 Amazon 1.5 Lithium AA Batteries X 830-02 · Commo Supplies -25.97 -122.48
Credit Card Charge 10/27/2021 112-5623003 Amazon 1.5 Lithium AAA Batteries X 830-02 · Commo Supplies -20.84 -143.32
Credit Card Charge 10/29/2021 112-0046392 Amazon Keyless Deadbolt Door Lock X 845-01 · Supplies and Inventory -46.53 -189.85
Credit Card Charge 10/29/2021 112-7341914 Amazon Battery Disconnect Switch X 845-01 · Supplies and Inventory -32.46 -222.31
Credit Card Charge 11/02/2021 271352 BWS Distributors Oxygen Sensor X 845-01 · Supplies and Inventory -131.10 -353.41
Credit Card Charge 11/03/2021 1489441 Golden State Lumber 2 Replacement Entry Doors - Fir... X 840-02 · Building Maintenance -1,933.35 -2,286.76
Credit Card Charge 11/06/2021 1106 Inverness Store Supplies X 850-01 · Volunteer Training -21.24 -2,308.00
Credit Card Charge 11/07/2021 1107 Olema Campground Propane for F3 X 840-07 · Collection-Treatment Utilities -43.25 -2,351.25
Credit Card Charge 11/13/2021 1526343783 Adobe 1 month Adobe Online J Fox X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -24.99 -2,376.24
Credit Card Charge 11/14/2021 1114 Palace Market Volunteer Training / Drill X 850-01 · Volunteer Training -61.27 -2,437.51
Credit Card Charge 11/17/2021 112-0834736 Amazon Truck Window Crank Handles X 860-02 · Repairs & Service -16.00 -2,453.51
Credit Card Charge 11/18/2021 112-9508029 Amazon 4 Night Vision Security Camera... X 845-01 · Supplies and Inventory -376.60 -2,830.11

Total Charges and Cash Advances -2,830.11 -2,830.11

Payments and Credits - 1 item
Bill 10/10/2021 U. S. Bank Corporat... Managing Account XX-0662 X 20000 · Accounts Payable 481.54 481.54

Total Cleared Transactions -2,348.57 -2,348.57

Cleared Balance 2,348.57 2,830.11

Register Balance as of 11/22/2021 2,348.57 2,830.11

Ending Balance 2,348.57 2,830.11

1:48 PM Inverness PUD

11/30/21 Reconciliation Detail
XX-6591 · Fox, Jim - Cal Card, Period Ending 11/22/2021

Page 1



Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Split Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 2,830.11
Cleared Transactions

Charges and Cash Advances - 7 items
Credit Card Charge 11/23/2021 876154 Recreonics Inc. WEB54747 X 840-04 · Tank Maintenance -85.61 -85.61
Credit Card Charge 11/26/2021 34594... Amazon Airhose Parts X 845-01 · Supplies and Inventory -29.20 -114.81
Credit Card Charge 11/30/2021 1130 Palace Market Volunteer Training / Drill X 850-01 · Volunteer Training -60.87 -175.68
Credit Card Charge 12/02/2021 0198 Marin Resource Rec... Tank Site Cleanup/Recycle X 840-03 · Grounds Maintenance -43.00 -218.68
Credit Card Charge 12/06/2021 1206 Palace Market Office Supplies X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -24.67 -243.35
Credit Card Charge 12/11/2021 1211 Palace Market Volunteer Training X 850-01 · Volunteer Training -130.30 -373.65
Credit Card Charge 12/13/2021 15474... Adobe 1 month Adobe Online J Fox X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -24.99 -398.64

Total Charges and Cash Advances -398.64 -398.64

Payments and Credits - 1 item
Bill 11/18/2021 U. S. Bank Corporat... Managing Account XX-0662 X 20000 · Accounts Payable 2,830.11 2,830.11

Total Cleared Transactions 2,431.47 2,431.47

Cleared Balance -2,431.47 398.64

Register Balance as of 12/22/2021 -2,431.47 398.64

Ending Balance -2,431.47 398.64

1:40 PM Inverness PUD
01/06/22 Reconciliation Detail

XX-6591 · Fox, Jim - Cal Card, Period Ending 12/22/2021

Page 1



Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Split Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 596.09
Cleared Transactions

Charges and Cash Advances - 8 items
Credit Card Charge 10/25/2021 102521 U. S. Postmaster Postage for SDRMA Safety Video Returns X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -5.80 -5.80
Credit Card Charge 11/02/2021 10160... FedEx Office IDC Emergency Resources brochure (550) X 870-13 · Disaster Council -606.86 -612.66
Credit Card Charge 11/02/2021 1102 Costco Office Supplies X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -31.98 -644.64
Credit Card Charge 11/10/2021 03235 Canva Monthly Subsciption X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -12.95 -657.59
Credit Card Charge 11/10/2021 1110 U. S. Postmaster Postage for Tenney Tank Reimbursement P... X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -1.36 -658.95
Credit Card Charge 11/12/2021 1121 Marin Independent Journal 1 month Digital Subscription X 870-02 · Dues & Publications -18.00 -676.95
Credit Card Charge 11/14/2021 1114 Costco Office Supplies X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -179.82 -856.77
Credit Card Charge 11/19/2021 10641... John Scheepers Firehouse Maintenance X 840-02 · Building Maintenance -147.06 -1,003.83

Total Charges and Cash Advances -1,003.83 -1,003.83

Payments and Credits - 2 items
Bill 10/10/2021 U. S. Bank Corporate Pay... Managing Account XX-0662 X 20000 · Accounts Payable 596.09 596.09
Credit Card Credit 10/26/2021 02025... Carhartt Returned 4 pairs pants X 845-04 · Uniforms 232.96 829.05

Total Cleared Transactions -174.78 -174.78

Cleared Balance 174.78 770.87

Register Balance as of 11/22/2021 174.78 770.87

Ending Balance 174.78 770.87

1:51 PM Inverness PUD
11/30/21 Reconciliation Detail

XX-7757 · Redding, Shelley - Cal Card, Period Ending 11/22/2021

Page 1



Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Split Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 770.87
Cleared Transactions

Charges and Cash Advances - 5 items
Credit Card Charge 11/30/2021 NDLM... Vistaprint Holiday Cards & Office Supplies X 870-10 · Public Relations & Outreach -87.39 -87.39
Credit Card Charge 12/02/2021 1202 U. S. Postmaster Postage for Tenney Tank Reimbursement Packet #3 X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -1.36 -88.75
Credit Card Charge 12/06/2021 03617... American Water Works Association Safety Training Video - Digital Download X 850-02 · Certification  & Courses -75.00 -163.75
Credit Card Charge 12/10/2021 03265 Canva Monthly Subsciption X 870-05 · Office Supplies, Postage, Fees -12.95 -176.70
Credit Card Charge 12/13/2021 1213 Marin Independent Journal 1 month Digital Subscription X 870-02 · Dues & Publications -18.00 -194.70

Total Charges and Cash Advances -194.70 -194.70

Payments and Credits - 1 item
Bill 11/18/2021 U. S. Bank Corporate Payment Systems Managing Account XX-0662 X 20000 · Accounts Payable 770.87 770.87

Total Cleared Transactions 576.17 576.17

Cleared Balance -576.17 194.70

Uncleared Transactions
Payments and Credits - 1 item

Bill 12/13/2021 U. S. Bank Corporate Payment Systems Managing Account XX-0662 20000 · Accounts Payable 194.70 194.70

Total Uncleared Transactions 194.70 194.70

Register Balance as of 12/22/2021 -770.87 0.00

Ending Balance -770.87 0.00

12:32 PM Inverness PUD
01/11/22 Reconciliation Detail

XX-7757 · Redding, Shelley - Cal Card, Period Ending 12/22/2021

Page 1



              Inverness Public Utility District  
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 10 

Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Audit 
 
 



 
Inverness Public Utility District 

B o a r d  Agenda I t e m  S t a f f  R e p o r t   

 
Subject: 2020-2021 Audit Report, Audit Management Report and Audit Letter Response 
Meeting Date: January 26, 2022   
Date Prepared: January 13, 2022   
Prepared by: Shelley Redding, Administrator   
Attachments: R.J. Ricciardi, CPA DRAFT Audit Report, DRAFT Management Letter; and IPUD 

Draft Response Letter  
===========================================================================   
Recommended Action: Approve Audit Report, Audit Management Report and Response Letter 
===========================================================================  
 
The 2020-2021 DRAFT Audit Report and DRAFT Audit Management Report is being presented to the 
Board at this January 26, 2022 Board meeting.  
 
Staff has reviewed the Audit Report and concurs with the final report. Staff has also reviewed the Man-
agement Letter and concurs with the Management Report. 
 
 

  



INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
(A California Special District)

INVERNESS, CALIFORNIA

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

DRAFT 
12/13/2021

To be used only for management discussion
purposes; engagement is incomplete; this
draft is subject to final review and possible
revision. **Report/Letter date is TENTATIVE-TBD**



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

Independent Auditors’ Report 1-2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-7
Basic Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position 8

Statement of Activities 9

Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet 10

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet 
   with the Governmental Activities Statement of Net Position 11

Governmental Funds - Statement of Revenues, 
   Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 12

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of 
   Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
   with the Statement of Activities 13

Proprietary Funds – Statement of Net Position 14

Proprietary Funds - Statement of Revenues, 
   Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 15

Proprietary Funds - Statement of Cash Flows 16

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 17-37

Required Supplemental Information:

General Fund – Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
    and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual 38

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 39

Schedule of Contributions 40

Schedule of Change in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 41

Schedule of Contributions - OPEB 42

DR
AF
T



- 1 -

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Inverness Public Utility District
Inverness, California

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
and each major fund of Inverness Public Utility District (a California special district), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Inverness Public Utility 
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for Special Districts; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the State Controller’s 
Minimum Audit Requirements for Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to Inverness Public Utility District’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Inverness Public Utility District’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and, where applicable, 
cash flows of Inverness Public Utility District, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for Special Districts. 

DR
AF
T



- 2 -

To the Board of Directors
Inverness Public Utility District - Page 2

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis (pages 3-7) and the pension plan information, schedule of change in the net OPEB liability and related 
ratios, and budgetary comparison information (pages 38-42), as listed in the table of contents, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

R. J. Ricciardi, Inc.
R. J. Ricciardi, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants

San Rafael, California

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2021

- 3 -

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance of the 
Inverness Public Utility District (the District) provides an introduction to the financial statements of the District for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction 
with the Independent Auditor’s Report and with the basic financial statements and related notes, which follow this 
section.

Using This Financial Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities provide information about the activities and performance of the District using accounting methods similar 
to those used by private sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s investments in 
resources (assets), deferred outflows of resources, the obligations to creditors (liabilities), and deferred inflows of 
resources. It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District and 
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the Statement of Activities. These statements measure the success of the District’s operations and 
can be used to determine the District’s profitability and credit worthiness. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities 
One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is: “Is the District better off or worse 
off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report 
information about the District in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and 
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. 
All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in them. Think of the District’s net position - the 
difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources - as 
one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net 
position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other 
non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the District’s property tax bases and the types of grants for which 
the District applies to assess the overall financial health of the District. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheets and the 
governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

DR
AF
T



- 4 -

Inverness Public Utility District
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 17 
through 33.

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information concerning the District’s budgetary information, pension plan information, and schedule of 
change in the net OPEB liability and related ratios. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 38 
through 42.

Government-wide Financial Analysis - Governmental Activities

Statement of Net Position 
The following table is a condensed summary of the statements of net position at June 30, 2021, with prior year 
comparative information: 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the 
case of the District, assets of the District exceeded liabilities by $2,509,507 as of June 30, 2021. Compared to the prior
year, net position of the District increased $350,838. The District’s net position is made-up of three components: (1) 
net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted net position (3) unrestricted net position. 

Statement of Activities 
The following table is a condensed summary of the statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2021, with prior 
year comparative information

Table 1
Governmental Net Position at June 30

2021 2020
Current assets $          2,976,489 $         2,649,076
Capital assets, net of depreciation            8,973          16,829

Total assets      2,985,462    2,665,905
Deferred outflows         110,244          40,498

Current liabilities              95,690          94,203
Long-term liabilities        379,752        439,537

Total liabilities         475,442        533,740
Deferred inflows        110,757         13,995

Net position:
  Invested in capital assets, net of debt               8,973             16,829
  Restricted            571,730 478,034
  Unrestricted     1,928,804      1,663,805

Total net position $         2,509,507 $      2,158,668

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2021

- 5 -

Governmental 
Activities

2021

Governmental 
Activities

2020
Expenses
General government (operations and fire protection) $        242,743 $             263,730
Public safety      239,285        426,261
      Total expenses     482,028        689,991

Revenues
Program revenues:
  Charges for services - -
  Operating grants and contributions               -   -   
      Total program revenues - -

General revenues:
  Taxes         694,924         714,493
  Other revenues            137,902             39,652
  Interest income 40 _____            -

  Total general revenues         832,866     754,145
      Total revenues         832,866          754,145

Change in net position $            350,838 $          64,154

Business-type 
2021

Business-type 
2020

Current assets $            (652,745) $       (511,580)
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation       1,692,966    1,638,800
      Total assets       1,040,221    1,127,220
Deferred outflows          257,236        94,496

Current liabilities              87,767     88,617
Long-term debt outstanding       909,636 1,044,500
      Total liabilities       997,403      1,133,117
Deferred inflows       258,432        32,655

Net position:
  Invested in capital assets         1,692,966         1,638,800
  Unrestricted     (1,651,344) (1,582,856)
     Total net position $ 41,622 $       55,944 

Table 2
Changes in Governmental Net Position

Table 3
Business-type Net Position at June 30DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2021

- 6 -

Table 4
Changes in Business-Type Net Position

Business-Type 
Activities

2021

Business-Type 
Activities

2020
Expenses
Water $             611,104 $             908,864
      Total expenses              611,104              908,864

Revenues
Program revenues:
  Charges for services              582,436              534,114
      Total program revenues              582,436              534,114

General revenues:
  Interest income                 14,346          25,160
      Total general revenues                 14,346                25,160
      Total revenues              596,782              559,274

Change in net position $             (14,322) $           (349,590)

Table 5
Capital Assets at Year-end

At June 30, 2021, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to $1,701,939 net of accumulated depreciation. 
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, fire apparatus, furnishings and equipment, collection and 
distribution systems, tanks, wells, water treatment facilities and construction-in-process. The capital assets of the 
District are more fully analyzed in Note 3 to the basic financial statements. 

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position 

Management is unaware of any conditions which could have a significant impact on the District’s current financial 
position, net position, or operating results in terms of past, present and future. 

Balance at
June 30, 2021

Balance at
June 30, 2020

Governmental Activities
Buildings $               237,515 $               237,515
Tankers and vehicles           381,811           381,811 
Equipment and furnishings           298,802           294,452

  Less: accumulated depreciation                (909,155)                (896,949)
      Governmental activity capital assets, net $                  8,973 $                16,829

Business-type Activities
Non-depreciable assets $              288,337 $              215,969
Wells             71,499             71,499 

  Plant and equipment      4,114,377         4,025,804
  Less: accumulated depreciation           (2,781,248)           (2,674,472)

      Business-type activity capital assets, net $           1,692,965 $           1,638,800

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2021

- 7 -

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders and other 
interested parties with an overview of the District's financial operations and financial conditions. Should the reader 
have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request additional financial information, 
please contact the District’s Administrator at P.O Box 469, Inverness, California 94937 or (415) 669-1414. 

DR
AF
T



Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments 1,604,280$     -$ 1,604,280$     

OPEB Trust restricted cash and investments 571,730         571,730         

Accounts receivable 180 90,236           90,416           

Interfund accounts 773,170         (773,170)        -

Prepaid items 27,129           30,189           57,318           

Non-depreciable capital assets - 288,337 288,337         

Depreciable capital assets, net 8,973             1,404,629 1,413,602       

Total assets 2,985,462       1,040,221       4,025,683       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Deferred outflows related to retiree health 76,680           178,920         255,600         

Deferred outflows related to pensions 33,564           78,316           111,880         

Total Deferred outflows of resources 110,244         257,236         367,480         

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 83,805           1,610             85,415           

Deposits - 9,025 9,025             

Unearned income - 77,132 77,132           

Compensated absences 11,885           23,548 35,433           

Long-term liabilities

OPEB Liability 247,549         577,615         825,164         

Net pension liability 132,203         308,473         440,676         

Total liabilities 475,442         997,403         1,472,845       

DEFERRED INFLOWS

Deferred inflows related to retiree health 105,688         246,605         352,293         

Deferred inflows related to pensions 5,069             11,827           16,896           

Total Deferred inflows of resources 110,757         258,432         369,189         

NET POSITION

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 8,973             1,692,966       1,701,939       

Restricted 571,730         571,730         

Unrestricted net position 1,928,804       (1,651,344) 277,460         

Total net position 2,509,507$     41,622$         2,551,129$     

Inverness Public Utility District

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 8 -

DR
AF
T



Operating

Charges for Grants and Governmental Business-type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities:

General government 242,743$     -$            -$            (242,743)$    (242,743)$    

Public safety 239,285       -              -              (239,285)      (239,285)      

Total governmental activities 482,028       -              -              (482,028)      (482,028)      

Business-type activities:

Water 611,104       582,436       -              (28,668)$      (28,668)        

Total business-type activities 611,104       582,436       -              (28,668)        (28,668)        

Total 1,093,132$  582,436$     -$            (482,028)      (28,668)        (510,696)      

General revenues:

Property taxes 694,924       -              694,924       

Other revenues 137,902       -              137,902       

Interest income 40               14,346         14,386         

Total general revenues 832,866       14,346         847,212       

Change in net position 350,838       (14,322)        336,516       

Net position beginning of period 2,158,669    55,944         2,214,613    

Net position ending of period 2,509,507$  41,622$       2,551,129$  

Changes in Net Position

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Inverness Public Utility District

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Program Revenues

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 9 -

DR
AF
T



ASSETS 

Cash and investments 1,604,280$    

OPEB Trust restricted cash and investments 571,730        

Accounts receivable 180               

Prepaid items 27,129          

Due from other funds 1,748,899      

Total assets 3,952,218$    

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 83,805$         

Compensated absences 11,885          

Due to other funds 975,729        

Total liabilities 1,071,419      

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 27,129          

Restricted OPEB Trust 571,730        

Assigned for:

Specific purposes 2,909,387      

Unassigned (627,447)       

Total fund balances 2,880,799      

Total liabilities and fund balances 3,952,218$    

Inverness Public Utility District

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 10 -

DR
AF
T



TOTAL FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 2,880,799$        

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of 

Net Position are different from those reported in the Governmental

Funds above because of the following:

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital Assets used in Governmental Activities are not current assets

or financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 

Governmental Funds. 8,973

LONG-TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The assets and liabilities below are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the Funds:

Deferred outflows pension 33,564

Deferred outflows OPEB 76,680

Deferred inflows pension (5,069)

Deferred inflows OPEB (105,688)

OPEB liability (247,549)

Net pension liability (132,203)

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 2,509,507$        

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Inverness Public Utility District

Reconciliation of the

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BALANCE SHEET

with the Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 11 -

DR
AF
T



Revenues:

Taxes 694,924$        

Other revenues 137,902         

Total revenues 832,866         

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 247,093         

Public safety 259,847         

Total expenditures 506,940         

Excess (deficit) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 325,926         

Fund balances, beginning of period 2,554,873       

Fund balances, end of period 2,880,799$     

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Inverness Public Utility District

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 12 -

DR
AF
T



The schedule below reconciles the Net Changes in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental
Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, which measures only
changes in current assets and current liabilities on the modified accrual basis, with the Change in
Net Position of Governmental Activities reported in the Statement of Activities, which is
prepared on the full accrual basis.

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 325,926$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities

are different because of the following:

CAPITAL ASSETS TRANSACTIONS

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 

Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated

over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay 4,350             

Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balance (12,207)          

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or

(require) the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported 

 as revenue or expenditures in the governmental funds (net change):

OPEB expense 39,769           

Pension expense (7,000)            

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 350,838$       

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Inverness Public Utility District

Reconciliation of the

 GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

with the

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 13 -

DR
AF
T



Water

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and investments -$              

Accounts receivable 90,236

Prepaid items 30,189           

Total current assets 120,425         

Non-current assets:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,692,966      

Total assets 1,813,391      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Deferred outflows related to retiree health 178,920
Deferred outflows related to pensions 78,316           

Total Deferred outflows of resources 257,236         

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accrued expenses 1,610             

Customer deposits 9,025

Unearned income 77,132

Compensated absences 23,548

Due to other funds 773,170         

Total current liabilities 884,485         

Long-term liabilities

OPEB liability 577,615
Net pension liability 308,473         

Total liabilities 1,770,573      

DEFERRED INFLOWS

Deferred inflows related to retiree health 246,605
Deferred inflows related to pensions 11,827           

Total Deferred inflows of resources 258,432         

NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,692,966      

Unrestricted (1,651,344)     

Total net position 41,622$         

Inverness Public Utility District

June 30, 2021

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 14 -

DR
AF
T



Water

Operating revenues:

Charges for services 582,436$         

Total operating revenues 582,436          

Operating expenses:

Personnel services 360,908

Collection and treatment 69,880

Distribution 44,000

Depreciation 106,775

Administration 29,541            

Total operating expenses 611,104          

Operating income (loss) (28,668)           

Nonoperating revenues and expenses:

Interest income 14,346            

Change in net position (14,322)           

Net position, beginning of period 55,944            
Net position, end of period 41,622$           

Inverness Public Utility District

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

For the year ended June 30, 2021

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 15 -

DR
AF
T



Business-type 

Activities

Enterprise Funds

Water

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers 598,995$            

Payments to suppliers (19,665)               

Payments to employees (432,735)             

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 146,595              

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets (160,941)             

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

 financing activities (160,941)             

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest income 14,346                

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -                     

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period -                     

Cash and cash equivalents - end of period -$                   

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (28,668)$             

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 106,775              

Changes in certain assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 16,559                

Prepaid items 18                      

Accounts payable (850)                   

Deposits -                     

Unearned income -                     

Due to/from other funds 124,588              

Compensated absences 4,635                  

OPEB (160,480)             

Pension expense 84,018                

Total adjustments 175,263              

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 146,595$            

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Inverness Public Utility District

For the year ended June 30, 2021

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 16 -

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 17 -

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Description of District

The Inverness Public Utility District (the District) was formed in 1948 with the intent to purchase the 
water system serving the Inverness Valley community. In 1949 and 1950, the District attempted to 
purchase the water system serving the community; however, the District did not receive the required 
votes from the community to make the purchase. In 1951, the District took over the operations of the 
Inverness Volunteer Fire Department. In 1980, the District purchased the water system serving the 
community. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors who serve four-year terms 
and are elected at large. The directors entrust the responsibility for the efficient execution of District 
policies to their designated representative, the General Manager. The District is subject to the laws, 
regulations and guidelines as set forth by the State Controller’s Office. Major sources of revenue for 
the District include water service charges and property taxes. 

B. The Reporting Entity

The District is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected
governing board that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election. The District has no 
blended or discretely presented component units. 

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The basic financial statements of the District are composed of the following: 

• Government-wide financial statements
• Fund financial statements
• Notes to the basic financial statements

Government-wide Statements: These statements are presented on an economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting for both governmental and business-like activities. 
Accordingly, all of the District’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets, are included in the 
accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, 
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The Statement of 
Activities demonstrates the degree to which the operating expenses of a given function are offset by 
operating revenues. Operating expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. 
The types of transactions reported as operating revenues for the District are charges for services 
directly related to the operations of the District. Charges for services include revenues from customers 
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by the 
District. Taxes, operating grants and other items not properly included among operating revenues are 
reported instead as non-operating revenues. Contributed capital and capital grants are included as
capital contributions.

Fund Financial Statements: The underlying accounting system of the District is organized and operated 
on the basis of separate funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The 
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise 
its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which 
they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 18 -

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (concluded)

The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, including fiduciary funds 
and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and proprietary 
are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual governmental and 
enterprise funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and liabilities are 
included on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and 
other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable and available to finance 
expenditures of the current period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except 
that revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days after year-end) are recognized when due. The 
primary sources susceptible to accrual for the District are property tax, interest earnings, investment 
revenue and operating and capital grant revenues. Expenditures are generally recognized under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. However, exceptions to 
this rule may include principal and interest on debt, which are recognized when due.

The accrual basis of accounting is followed by the proprietary fund. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred, or economic asset used. Unbilled water receivables are recorded at year end. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Revenues 
are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned, and expenses are recognized in the 
period incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Operating revenues, such as 
water sales, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the District. 
Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. 
Non-operating revenues, such as grant funding and investment income, result from non-exchange 
transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) value 
in exchange. 

D. Major Funds

GASB Statement 34 defines major funds and requires that the District’s major governmental and
business-type funds be identified and presented separately in the fund financial statements. All other 
funds, called non-major funds, are combined and reported in a single column, regardless of their fund-
type.

Major funds are defined as funds that have assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses equal 
to ten percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total. The General Fund is always a 
major fund. The District may also select other funds it believes should be presented as major funds. 

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 19 -

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Major Funds (concluded)

The District reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial 
statements:

General Fund: This fund accounts for the operations of the District. The General Fund is used for all 
the general revenues of the District not specifically levied or collected for other District funds and the 
related expenditures. The General Fund accounts for all financial resources of a governmental unit that 
are not accounted for in another fund.

Water Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts for the water operations of the District. 

E. Net Position

Net Position is the excess of all the District’s assets over all its liabilities, regardless of fund. Net 
Position is divided into three captions under GASB Statement 34. These captions apply only to Net 
Position, which is determined only at the Government-wide level, and are described below:

Invested in Capital, net of related debt describes the portion of Net Position that is represented by the 
current net book value of the District’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued 
for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted describes the portion of Net Position that is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions 
of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions that the 
District cannot unilaterally alter. 

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Position that does not meet the definition of restricted or net 
investment in capital assets. This may include amounts Board-designated to be reported as being held 
for a particular purpose.

F.  Fund Balance

The financial statements - governmental funds report fund balances as nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to
honor constraints on how specific amounts can be spent. 

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not 
spendable in form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance includes amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or 
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions enabling legislation. 

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by 
formal action of the District’s highest level of decision-making authority (the Board of Directors) and 
that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The underlying action that imposed the 
limitation needs to occur no later than the close of the reporting period. 

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 20 -

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

F.  Fund Balance (concluded)

Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to be used for 
specific purposes. The intent can be established at either the highest level of decision-making, or by a
body or an official designated for that purpose. This is also the classification for residual funds in the 
District’s special revenue funds. 

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the District’s general fund that includes 
amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the unassigned classification is used 
only if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed, or 
assigned to those purposes. 

The Board of Directors establishes, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments 
by passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is done through adoption of the budget and subsequent 
budget amendments that occur throughout the year. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, followed by the unrestricted, committed, assigned and unassigned resources 
as they are needed. 

Fund Balance Policy 
The District believes that sound financial management principles require that sufficient funds be 
retained by the District to provide a stable financial base at all times. To retain this stable financial 
base, the District needs to maintain an unrestricted fund balance in its funds sufficient to fund cash
flows of the District and to provide financial reserves for unanticipated expenditures and/or revenue 
shortfalls of an emergency nature. Committed, assigned and unassigned fund balances are considered 
unrestricted. 

The purpose of the District’s fund balance policy is to maintain a prudent level of financial resources 
to protect against reducing service levels or raising taxes and fees because of temporary revenue
shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenditures. 

G. Accounts Receivable

The District bills the local residents for water usage on a bi-monthly basis. Estimated unbilled water 
revenue through June 30 has been accrued at year-end for the Water Enterprise Fund. Management 
believes all amounts are collectible and, accordingly, there is no provision for uncollectible accounts 
reflected herein. 

H. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have been 
satisfied. The District bills for its fixed service charge in advance. Therefore, the portion of customers’ 
bills that is for the fixed charge is deferred. 

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 21 -

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

I. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property 
owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital expenditures or 
capacity commitment. 

J. Budgetary Policies

The District follows specific procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements. Each April, the District’s General Manager prepares and submits a capital and operating 
budget to the Board of Directors for adoption no later than June of each year. The basis used to 
prepare the budget does not differ substantially from the modified accrual basis of accounting. The 
adopted budget becomes operative on July 1. 

The Board of Directors must approve all supplemental appropriations to the budget and transfers 
between major funds. The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level. Budget information is 
presented as required supplementary information for the general fund.

K. Compensated Absences

The District’s policy is to permit employees to accumulate an unlimited amount of earned vacation
leave. Accumulated vacation time is accrued at year-end to account for the District’s obligation to the 
employees for the amount owed. Sick leave, which is limited to 80 hours per year for full-time 
employees and is pro-rated for part-time employees, is unearned and does not carry over to the 
following fiscal year. 

Governmental fund types recognize the vested vacation as an expenditure in the current year to 
the extent it is paid during the year. Accrued vacation relating to governmental funds is included 
as a long-term liability in the Statement of Net Position as those are payable from future resources 
and within the Balance Sheet - Water Enterprise Fund for amounts relating to the proprietary fund 
type. 

L.  Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the 
capitalization threshold for recording capital assets at $1,000 ($3,000 prior to June 30, 2017). Donated 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation and/or historical cost. Upon
retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the cost and related accumulation depreciation are
removed from the respective balances and any gains or losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded 
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
• Buildings and improvements - 5 to 30 years
• Fire apparatus - 3 to 20 years
• Furnishings and equipment - 3 to 7 years

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 22 -

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

L. Capital Assets (concluded)

Business-Type Activities
• Collection and distribution system - 5 to 50 years
• Tanks - 5 to 40 years
• Water treatment - 5 to 40 years
• Wells - 40 years
• Vehicles and equipment - 5 to 7 years

M. Investments and Investment Policy

The District has adopted an investment policy directing the District’s General Manager to deposit 
funds in financial institutions. Investments are to be made in the following areas: 

• Financial institution checking and savings accounts
• California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for 
that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or 
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments. 

Local Agency Investment Fund - LAIF is regulated by California Government Code (Code) Section 16429 
and is under the management of the State of California Treasurer’s Office with oversight provided by 
the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board. 

LAIF is carried at fair value based on the value of each participating dollar as provided by LAIF. The 
fair value of the District’s position in the LAIF is the same as the value of its pooled share. Investment 
in securities of the U.S. government or its agencies are carried at fair value based on quoted market 
prices. Bank balances are secured by the pledging of a pool of eligible securities to collateralize the 
District’s deposits with the bank in accordance with the Code. 

N. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is defined as cash in demand deposit accounts as well as cash on hand. Cash equivalents are short 
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and investments 
so near their maturity that the risk of changes in value due to changes in interest rates is negligible. 
These are generally investments with maturity dates within three months of the acquisition date. 

O. Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles, and as such, include amounts based on informed estimates and judgments of management 
with consideration given to materiality. Actual results could differ from those amounts.

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 23 -

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

P. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related 
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Inverness Public 
Utility District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and 
additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis 
as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments 
are reported at fair value. 

Q.   Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Pursuant to GASB Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the 
District recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources.

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net 
position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net 
position by the District that is applicable to a future reporting period.

NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The District maintains an operating account at Bank of America, and all other funds are on deposit
with the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) investment pool (see Note 1M, 
Investments and Investment Policy). 

These funds have been segregated into various accounts and, at June 30, 2021 the balances were 
as follows: 

     Deposits held with LAIF $         1,062,691
     California Employers Retirees Benefit Trust 571,730
     Deposits held with financial institutions              541,589
              Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $         2,176,010

Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for deposits and 
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of another party.

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 24 -

NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (concluded)

California Law requires banks and savings and loan associations to pledge government securities with a 
market value of 110% of the District’s cash on deposit or first trust deed mortgage notes with a value 
of 150% of the deposit as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law, this collateral is held in 
the District’s name and places the District ahead of general creditors of the institution. 

Fair Value Reporting - Investments
The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments within the fair value hierarchy 
established by GAAP. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. These levels are determined by the District’s investment manager 
based on a review of the investment class, structure and what kind of securities are held in the 
portfolio. The District’s holdings are classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:

Governmental Activities Balance
7/1/20 Additions

Deletions/
Transfers  

Balance
6/30/21

Depreciable assets
   Buildings $        237,515 $                  -   $                   -  $      237,515
   Vehicles       381,811                    -                      -         381,811 
   Furnishings and equipment         294,452              4,350                     -         298,802
Total depreciable assets        913,778 $           4,350 $                   -          918,128
Total accumulated depreciation         (896,949)         (909,155)
Total capital assets, net $          16,829 $           8,973  

Depreciation expense under governmental activities (district operations/fire protection) totaled $12,207.

Business-Type Activities Balance
7/1/20 Additions

Deletions/
Transfers  

Balance
6/30/21

Non-depreciable assets
   Land $         66,320 $                 -   $                  -   $          66,320
   Construction in progress          149,649         72,368                    -          222,017
Total non-depreciable assets          215,969             72,368                     -          288,337

Depreciable assets
   Wells 71,499 - - 71,499
   Collection system         375,590      7,377                      -           382,967
   Distribution system 1,083,066      81,196 - 1,164,262
   Tanks    1,062,276          - -    1,062,276 
   Water treatment        1,371,899                      - -      1,371,899 
   Vehicles and equipment             132,973                      -                   -          132,973
Total depreciable assets         4,097,303 $        88,573 $                 -         4,185,876
Total accumulated depreciation       (2,674,472)      (2,781,248)
Total depreciable assets, net        1,422,831       1,404,628
Total capital assets, net $    1,638,800 $    1,692,965

Depreciation expense under business-type activities (retail water enterprise) totaled $106,775.

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 25 -

NOTE 4 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PREPAID/(PAYABLE)

A. General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Descriptions- The District provides other post-employment benefits (OPEB) through CalPERS 
health. Eligible retirees have access to medical plan coverage for life.

Benefits Provided - The District pays a portion of the cost of health insurance for retirees under any 
group plan offered by CalPERS. Employees are eligible to retire and receive District-paid benefits after 
attaining age 50 and completing at least 5 years of service. District-paid benefits are capped at the 
PERS Choice premiums. Eligible retirees are provided District-paid benefits for their lifetime. District-
paid benefits are also provided for the lifetime of any eligible surviving spouses. In addition, the 
District pays the CalPERS administrative fees.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

Retirees or beneficiaries receiving benefit payments as of June 30, 2020 4
Active eligible employees as of June 30, 2020 7
  Total         11

The District’s required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. The 
District has an irrevocable OPEB trust with California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT). 

B. Net OPEB Liability

The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability used 
to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 30, 2020. 
Standard actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount from valuation to measurement 
dates.

Actuarial Assumptions- The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included 
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Mortality rates were based on the CalPERS mortality rates for miscellaneous and safety employees 
from the most recent experience study (1997-2015). The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 
2020 valuation were based on the CalPERS experience study and a review of plan experience during 
the period June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2020.

Discount Rate – GASB 75 requires the use of a discount rate that considers the availability of the 
OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position associated with the OPEB of current active and inactive employees 
and the investment horizon of those resources. 

Inflation rate 2.75%
Salary increases 3.00%
Discount rate 2.63%
Investment rate of return 6.00%, net of OPEB plan investment expense
Healthcare cost trend rate 5.20% for 2020 through 2049; 5.00% for 2050 through 2064; and 

4.00% for 2065 and later years.
Medicare cost trend rate 3.50% in all years

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 26 -

NOTE 4 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PREPAID/(PAYABLE) (continued)

B. Net OPEB Liability (concluded)

OPEB plans with irrevocable trust accounts can utilize a discount rate equal to the long-term expected 
rate of return to the extent that the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to 
make projected benefit payments and the OPEB plan assets are expected to be invested using a 
strategy to achieve that return. 

To determine if the OPEB plan assets are sufficient, a calculation of the projected fiduciary net 
position and the amount of projected benefit payments is compared in each period. When OPEB plan 
assets are determined to not be sufficient, a blended rate is calculated. 

For OPEB plans that do not have irrevocable trust accounts, GASB 75 requires a discount rate equal 
to the yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average 
rating of AA/Aa or higher. 

The District has an irrevocable trust account for prefunding OPEB liabilities. Plan assets are not 
expected to be sufficient. The blended discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability is as 
follows:

Reporting Date
Fiscal Year End

Measurement
Date 

Fiscal Year End

Long-Term
Expected Rate 

of Return 

Fidelity GO AA
20 Years

Municipal Index
GASB 75

Discount Rate
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 6.00% 3.13%  4.134%
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 6.00% 2.45% 2.63%

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
The calculated investment rate of return was set equal to the expected ten-year compound (geometric) 
real return plus inflation (rounded to the nearest 25 basis points, where appropriate). The table below 
provides the long-term expected real rates of return by asset class (based on published capital market 
assumptions). 

\
Asset Class Assumed Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return
Global ex-U.S. Equity 40.0% 5.5%
U.S. Fixed 43.0% 1.5%
TIPS 5.0% 1.2%
Real Estate 8.0% 3.7%
Commodities 4.0% 0.6%

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 27 -

NOTE 4 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PREPAID/(PAYABLE) (continued)

C. Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB 
Liability (a)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position (b)

Net OPEB 
Liability (a) - (b) 

Balances at June 30, 2020 $     1,303,055 $           477,891 $          825,164
Changes for the year:
Service cost         127,780 $                     -            127,780
Interest        58,068              -           58,068
Changes of benefit term       - -       -
Difference between expected and actual
  experience (487,791)       - (487,791)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 350,704       - 350,704
Contributions – employer - 44,705 (44,705)
Net investment income - 24,546 (24,546)
Benefit payments        (44,705)      (44,705) -
Administrative expenses                     -                  (224)                  224
Net changes              4,056               24,322            (20,266)
Balances at June 30, 2021 $       1,303,055 $          477,891 $         825,164

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents the 
net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the 
current discount rate: 

1% Decrease
(1.63%)   

Discount Rate
(2.63%)

1% Increase
(3.63%)    

Net OPEB liability (asset) $        1,037,638 $          825,164 $           657,223

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The following 
presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB liability would 
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease
(4.20% current,
3.00% ultimate,

2.50% Medicare)    

Discount Rate
(5.20% current,
4.00% ultimate,

3.50% Medicare)    

1% Increase
(6.20% current,
5.00% ultimate,

4.50% Medicare)    
Net OPEB liability (asset) $                660,753 $             825,164 $          1,029,515

D. OPEB Plan Experience

Reporting period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021
Measurement period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 28 -

NOTE 4 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PREPAID/(PAYABLE) (continued)

D. OPEB Plan Experience (concluded)

Benefit Payments and Contributions

Investment Rate of Return - The District’s policy regarding the allocation of the plan’s invested assets 
is established and may be amended by District management. The primary objective is to maximize 
total Plan return, subject to the risk and quality constraints set forth in the investment guidelines. The 
investment objective the District has selected is CERBT Strategy 2. The asset class allocations and 
benchmarks for this objective are listed below: 

For the year ended on the measurement date, the annual money-weighted rate of return on 
investments, net of investment expense, was 5.40 percent. The money-weighted rate of return 
expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts 
invested. 

E. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Annual OPEB Expense - The annual OPEB expense is the sum of the change in Net OPEB Liability, 
the change in deferred outflows, and the change in deferred inflows, reduced by the employer 
contributions. 

Benefit Payments
Benefits paid from the trust $                               -
Benefits paid outside of trust 38,885
Implicit benefits paid                   5,820
       Total benefit payments $                  44,705

Contributions
Contributions to the trust - employer $                               -
Contributions – benefits paid outside of trust 38,885
Contributions – implicit benefits paid                   5,820
       Total contributions $                  44,705

Asset Class
Target

Allocation
Target
Range Benchmark

Global Equity 40.0% + 5% MSCI All Country World Index IMI (Net)
Fixed Income 43.0% + 5% Bloomberg Barclay Long Liability Index         
Treasury Inflation-Protected
  Securities (TIPS) 5.0% + 3%

Bloomberg Barclay US TIPS 
Index, Series L       

Real Estate Investment
  Trusts (REITs) 8.0% + 5%

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT 
Developed Index (Net)

Commodities 4.0% + 3% S&P GSCI Total Return Index
Cash - + 2% 91-Day Treasury Bill

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 29 -

NOTE 4 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PREPAID/(PAYABLE) (concluded)

E. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (concluded)

Net OPEB liability at beginning of measurement period (a) $          845,430
Net OPEB liability at end of measurement period (b) $          825,164
Change in net OPEB liability (b)-(a)       (20,266)
Change in deferred outflows (255,600)
Change in deferred inflows 352,293
Employer contributions               44,705
Net OPEB expense from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020 $           121,132

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB - For the 
reporting year ending June 30, 2021, the District recognized deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

The District has a lookback measurement date. For the reporting year ending June 30, 2021, the 
District uses a measurement year ending June 30, 2020. The deferred resources listed above do not 
include any District contributions made after the measurement period. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between actual and expected experience $                      - $          352,293
Changes in assumptions or other inputs         253,286          -

Differences between projected and actual return investments                2,314                      -
         Total $           255,600 $           352,293

Reporting Fiscal
Year Ending

June 30:
Deferred Outflows

of Resources
Deferred Inflows

of Resources

Net Deferred
Outflows (Inflows)

of Resources
2022   $    97,996 $    (135,498) $    (37,502)
2023 97,996 (135,498)     (37,502)
2024 59,028 (81,297)     (22,269)
2025 580 0 580
2026 0 0 0
2027 0 0 0
2028 0 0 0
2029 0 0 0

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 30 -

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN

A. General Information about the Cost-Sharing Pension Plan

Plan Description - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the
District’s separate Safety (fire) and Miscellaneous (all other) Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and
District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the
pension  plans  regarding  benefit provisions,  assumptions  and membership information that can be 
found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. 
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All 
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one 
of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W 
Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public 
Employees’ Retirement Law. 

The Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) requires new benefits and member 
contributions for new members as defined by PEPRA, that are hired after January 1, 2013. These 
PEPRA members in pooled plans are reflected in the new Miscellaneous and Safety risk pools created 
by the CalPERS Board in response to the passage of PEPRA, beginning with the June 30, 2013, risk-
pool valuations.

The Plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows: 

District Miscellaneous

Hire date
Prior to 

January 1, 2013
On or after

January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 63 52
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.092% to 2.418% 1.092% to 2.418%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 6.709% 6.533%

District Safety

Hire date
Prior to 

January 1, 2013
On or after

January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 50 – 55
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.426% to 2.0% 1.426% to 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 9.5%
Required employer contribution rates 11.530% 9.513%

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 31 -

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (continued)

A. General Information about the Cost-Sharing Pension Plan (concluded)

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary 
and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding contributions for 
the Miscellaneous Plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The 
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by 
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The 
District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the 
contribution rate of employees. 

Contributions to the pension plan from the District were as follows:

Valuation Date: June 30, 2019
Measurement Date: June 30, 2020
Reporting Date June 30, 2021

Miscellaneous Plan Contributions $51,495
Safety Plan Contributions $22,259

Contributions to the pension plan from the District after the measurement date of June 30, 2020 were 
as follows:

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

Pension Liabilities – The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. The District’s proportion of the 
net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of the contributions to 
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially 
determined.

At June 30, 2021, the District reported proportionate shares of the net pension as follows: 

The District’s proportionate share of each plan as of June 30, 2020 and 2021 were as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety
Contributions - employer $             41,434 $          19,993   

Proportionate
Share of Net

Pension Liability
Miscellaneous $          286,215
Safety      154,460
       Total Net Pension Liability $         440,675

All Plans Miscellaneous Safety Safety
Proportionate share at June 30, 2020     0.00678% 0.00223% 0.00401%
Proportionate share at June 30, 2021 0.00679% 0.00232% 0.00405%
Increase (decrease) in proportionate share 0.00001% 0.00009% 0.00004%

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 32 -

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions (concluded)

Pension Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of 
$84,478

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 
2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date, reported as deferred outflows of resources related 
to pensions, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 
2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between actual and expected experience $     26,727 $        -
Changes in assumptions - 2,556

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on 
    pension plan investments. 11,860   -

Differences between District contributions and 
     proportionate share of contributions 4,449           11,597

Changes in proportion 7,418 2,742

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date      61,427   -
         Total $           111,880 $             16,895

Reporting Fiscal Year
Ended June 30:

Miscellaneous 
Net Deferred 

Outflows(Inflows)
of Resources

Safety
Net Deferred 

Outflows(Inflows)
of Resources

Total
Net Deferred 

Outflows(Inflows)
of Resources

2022 $      (920) $ 2,698 $   1,778
2023 8,264 5,457 13,720
2024 7,450 4,849 12,299
2025 4,078 1,682 5,760
2026 - - -

Thereafter        - -        -
Total $      18,872 $    14,686 $  33,558

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 33 -

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (continued)

C. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of mortality 
are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Preretirement and 
Post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement using 90% of Scale 
MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the 
CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from December 2017 that 
can be found on the CalPERS website.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the 
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the 
expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was 
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single 
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits of cash flows as the one 
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal 
to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative 
expenses. The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

Inflation rate 2.50%
Salary increases Varies by entry age and service

         Investment rate of return 7.15%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Post retirement benefit increase The lesser of contract COLA or 2.50% until Purchasing Power

Protection Allowance floor on purchasing power applies,  2.50% 
thereafter

Asset Class
New Strategic 

Allocation
Real Return 
Years 1-10 (a)

Real Return
Years 11+ (b)

Global Equity   50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%          
Inflation assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real assets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity             1.0% 0.00% (0.92)%

Total            100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.

(b) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 34 -

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN (concluded)

C. Actuarial Assumptions (concluded)

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will 
be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at 
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease
(6.15%)    

Discount Rate
(7.15%)

1% Increase
(8.15%)    

Miscellaneous net pension liability (asset) $ 459,695 $     286,215 $      142,874
Safety net pension liability (asset) 235,234   154,460 88,178
   Total net pension liability (asset) $    694,928 $    440,675 $     231,052

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are assessed, collected and distributed by the County of Marin in accordance with
legislation. Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on real property located in the 
County of Marin as of March 1. Secured property taxes are levied each November 1 on the assessed 
value of the real property as of prior March 1. Taxes are due in two equal installments on December 10 
and April 10 following the levy date. 

Under California law, secured property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties at up to 1% of 
assessed value, plus other increases approved by the voters. The property taxes are pooled and then 
allocated to the District based upon complex formulas. 

Unsecured property taxes are levied throughout the year beginning March 1 on the assessed value of 
personal property as of March 1. For unsecured property tax bills issued between March 1 and June 30, 
the amount is payable by August 31. For unsecured property tax bills issued after June 30, the amount 
of the tax is due 30 days after the bill is issued, but no later than February 28/29. Special assessment 
charges are incorporated on the property tax bill, and therefore are attached as an enforceable lien on 
real property located within the District. 

Special assessment charges are due in two installments on December 10 and April 10 following the
assessment date. The special assessments are collected and distributed to the District by the County of 
Marin. 

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 35 -

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAXES (concluded)

Effective July 1, 1993, the District, in addition to other districts, entered into an agreement 
(hereafter known as the “Teeter Plan”) with the County of Marin whereby the County agreed to 
purchase without recourse all previously outstanding (net of all adjustments) secured delinquent 
property tax and special assessment receivables, penalties and interest of the districts as of June 
30, 1993. Additionally, the County agreed to advance each district its share of the annual gross 
levy of secured property taxes and special assessments (net of adjustments) billed through the
County’s Tax Collector for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, and for each subsequent fiscal 
year of the agreement. In consideration, the District gives the County of Marin its right to 
penalties and interest on delinquent property tax receivables and actual proceeds collected. This 
agreement is still operational as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The District employs a relative of a member of management staff. This transaction is approved 
annually by the Board of Directors as part of the budget process. For the year ended June 30, 2021, 
$85,197 was paid in salaries under his employment.

NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of 
the Special District Management Authority (SDRMA), an intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers 
authority created to provide self-insurance programs from California Special Districts. The purpose of 
the SDRMA is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase excess 
insurance coverage. At June 30, 2021, the District participated in the liability and property programs of 
the SDRMA as follows:

 General and auto liability, public officials and employees’ errors and omissions: Total risk
financing self-insurance limits of $2,500,000, combined single limit at $2,500,000 per
occurrence. The District purchased additional excess coverage layers: $2,500,000 for general,
auto and public officials liability, which increases the limit on the insurance coverage noted
above.

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage:

 Employee dishonesty coverage up to $400,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty,
forgery or alteration and theft, disappearance and destruction coverages.

 Property loss is paid at the replacement cost for property on file, if replaced within two years
after the loss, otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a combined total of $1.0 billion
per occurrence, subject to a $2,000 deductible per occurrence.

 Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacement cost up to $100 million per occurrence,
subject to a $1,000 deductible per occurrence.

 Public officials’ personal liability up to $500,000 each occurrence, with an annual aggregate of
$100,000 per each elected/appointed official to which this coverage applies, subject to the
terms, with a deductible of $500 per claim. Workers’ compensation insurance up to $100
million per occurrence and Employer’s Liability Coverage up to $5 million.

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years. 

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 36 -

NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT (concluded)

There were no reductions in insurance coverage in fiscal years 2021 and 2020. Liabilities are recorded 
when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated net of the respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have 
been incurred but not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2021.

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Nuclear Free Zone - The Board of Directors of Inverness Public Utility District adopted an ordinance 
on November 6, 1990, declaring the District as a Nuclear Free Zone and thereby joined in with other 
Nuclear Free Zone communities in eliminating the profit incentive for nuclear weapons makers by 
means of an economic boycott. As a result of this ordinance, the District shall purchase no product or
service of or from any nuclear weapon maker, except that the District may purchase such a product or 
service where required by law or where no other product or service can be found in sufficient quality 
or suitability and at a low enough price to be consistent with good management practice and safety. 
The District shall include a copy of the ordinance with all requests for proposals and all purchase 
orders. The Board of Directors of the District shall meet annually to review the investment options 
and determine if the transfer of District funds to a financial institution that makes no investments in
nuclear weapons makers (“Nuclear Free Fund”) is consistent with State law and prudent management. 

Marin Emergency Radio Authority - During fiscal year 1999, the District became a member of the 
Marin Emergency Radio Authority (Authority). The Authority is a joint exercise of powers agency 
created on February 28, 1998, pursuant to the California Government Code and a Joint Powers 
Agreement, by and among the County of Marin and twenty-five local agencies within the County 
(collectively, the “Members”). The Authority’s purpose is to plan, finance, implement, manage, own
and operate a multi-jurisdictional and County-wide public safety and emergency radio system. During 
1999, the Authority issued bonds to finance the acquisition and installation of a County-wide public 
safety and emergency radio system (the “Project”), to fund a reserve fund, to fund capitalized interest 
on the 1999 bonds and to pay the costs incurred in issuing the 1999 bonds. The Project will be owned 
and operated by the Authority. The Members will use the radio service provided by the Project to carry 
out public safety and emergency functions in their individual service areas. 

The 1999 bonds are special obligations of the Authority payable solely from revenues consisting 
generally of the service payments to be made by the County and the Members within the County under 
an operating agreement. Scheduled payments began in August 2001. In addition, the District is 
obligated to pay a share of the Authority’s annual operating costs. For the year ended June 30, 2021, 
the debt service costs associated with the District’s participation in the Authority were $12,010.

A copy of the Authority’s financial statements is available upon request from the Marin County 
Administrator’s office at 3501 Civic Center Drive, Room 325, San Rafael, CA 94903. 

Grant Awards - Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such 
audit could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed 
under terms of the grant. Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would 
not be significant. 

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

- 37 -

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (concluded)

Coronavirus Pandemic - In December 2019, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) 
began to spread among various countries, including the United States. On March 11, 2020, the World 
Health Organization characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. In addition, multiple jurisdictions in the
U.S., including California, declared a state of emergency and issued shelter-in-place orders in response 
to the outbreak. The immediate impact to the District’s operations included restrictions on employees’ 
and volunteers’ ability to work, and it is anticipated that the impacts from this pandemic will continue 
for some time. As of the report date, the financial impact of the coronavirus outbreak cannot be 
measured.

DR
AF
T



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DR
AF
T



Variance with

Final Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:

Taxes 665,623$       665,623$       694,924$       29,301$         

Use of money and property 4,500            4,500            40 (4,460)           

Other revenues 80,322          80,322          137,902 57,580          

Total revenues 750,445 750,445 832,866 82,421          

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 239,458 239,458 247,093 (7,635)           

Public safety 285,966 285,966 259,847 26,119          

Total expenditures 525,424 525,424 506,940 18,484          

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 225,021$       225,021$       325,926 100,905$       

Fund balance, beginning of period 2,554,873      

Fund balance, end of period 2,880,799$    

Budgeted Amounts

Inverness Public Utility District

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Budget and Actual 

For the year ended June 30, 2021

GENERAL FUND

Required Supplemental Information

(Unaudited)

- 38 -

DR
AF
T



Schedule of the Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability 

(Reporting fiscal year ended) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Proportion of the net pension

liability 0.2320% 0.2230% 0.2050% 0.7070% 0.0027% 0.0027% 0.0015%

Proportionate share of the net 

pension liability 154,460$ 139,169$ 120,488$ 120,488$ 106,929$ 76,909$   90,873$   

Covered - employee payroll 109,225$ 138,419$ 128,841$ 128,841$ 218,410$ 44,712$   87,737$   

Proportionate share of the net 

pension liability as a percentage 

of covered-employee payroll 141.41% 100.54% 93.52% 93.52% 48.96% 172.01% 103.57%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total pension liability 74.03% 76.81% 76.81% 76.81% 78.72% 84.31% 81.46%

Schedule of the Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability 

(Reporting fiscal year ended) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Proportion of the net pension

liability 0.6790% 0.6780% 0.7070% 0.2090% 0.0071% 0.0070% 0.0037%

Proportionate share of the net 

pension liability 286,215$ 271,534$ 266,448$ 266,448$ 246,696$ 200,453$ 231,036$ 

Covered - employee payroll 333,080$ 308,500$ 270,881$ 270,881$ 93,762$   236,606$ 257,863$ 

Proportionate share of the net 

pension liability as a percentage 

of covered-employee payroll 85.93% 88.02% 98.36% 98.36% 263.11% 84.72% 89.60%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total pension liability 78.04% 78.61% 75.39% 75.39% 75.76% 78.89% 74.15%

NOTES TO SCHEDULE:

*Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Misc. Plan

OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Inverness Public Utility District

As of June 30, 2021

*Last 7 Years*

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE 

Safety Plan

- 39 -

DR
AF
T



SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Fiscal Year End 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Contractually required contribution 

(actuarially determined) 22,259$   10,770$   4,216$     23,601$   12,041$   6,663$     

Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contributions (22,259)    (10,770)    (4,216)      (23,601)    (12,041)    (6,663)      

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$        -$ -$ -$ -$ -$        

Covered-employee payroll during the fiscal year 109,225$ 138,419$ 128,841$ 218,410$ 44,712$   87,737$   

Contributions as a percentage of 

covered-employee payroll 20.38% 7.78% 3.27% 10.81% 26.93% 7.59%

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan

Fiscal Year End 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Contractually required contribution 

(actuarially determined) 51,495$   40,249$   20,942$   8,518$     54,094$   31,622$   

Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contributions (51,495)    (40,249)    (20,942)    (8,518)      (54,094)    (31,622)    

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$        -$ -$ -$ -$ -$        

Covered-employee payroll during the fiscal year 333,080$ 308,500$ 270,881$ 93,762$   236,606$ 257,863$ 

Contributions as a percentage of 

covered-employee payroll 15.46% 13.05% 7.73% 9.08% 22.86% 12.26%

NOTES TO SCHEDULE:

*Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Misc.

Safety Plan

Inverness Public Utility District

As of June 30, 2021

*Last 6 Years*

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

- 40 -

DR
AF
T



Total OPEB Liability 2021

Service cost 127,780$          

Interest 58,068              

Effects of economic/demographic gains or losses (487,791)           

Benefit payments, included refunds of employee contributions (44,705)             

Effects of Assumptions changes or inputs 350,704            

Net change in total OPEB liability 4,056

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year 1,298,999         

Total OPEB liability - end of year 1,303,055$       

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net investment income 24,546$            

Contributions

Employer - explicit subsidy 44,705              

Employer - implicit subsidy -

Benefit payments, included refunds of employee contributions (44,705)             

Implicit rate subsidy fulfilled -

Administrative expense (224)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 24,322              

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning of year 453,569            

Plan fiduciary net position - end of year 477,891$          

District's net OPEB liability - end of year 825,164$          

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total OPEB liability 36.67%

Covered-employee payroll 446,919$          

Net OPEB liability as a percentage 
of covered-employee payroll 184.63%

Inverness Public Utility District

SCHEDULE OF CHANGE IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS

For the year ended June 30, 2021

The schedules present information to illustrate changes in the District's changes in the net OPEB liability 
over a ten-year period when the information is available.

- 41-

DR
AF
T



Schedule of District Contributions

Reporting fiscal year ending 2021

Actuarially determined contribution 44,705$            

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution (44,705)             

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$

Covered-employee payroll 446,919            

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 10.00%

Notes to Schedule

Valuation Date June 30, 2020

Reporting period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

Measurement period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Actuarial cost method Entry age

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Amortization period 30 years

Asset valuation method Market Value

Inflation 2.75 percent
Healthcare cost trend rates

Salary increases 3.00 percent

Investment rate of return 6.00 percent, net of OPEB plan investment expense
Retirement Age

Mortality

5.20 percent for 2020 through 2049; 5.00 percent for 2050 through 
2064; and 4.00 percent for 2065 and later years

10 percent for ages 50 and 51; 20 percent for ages 52 and 53; 25 
percent at 54; 50 percent for ages 55-60; 60 percent at age 61; 70 
percent at age 62; 80 percent at age 63; 90 percent at age 64; and 100 
percent at age 65

CalPERS mortality rate for miscellaneous and safety employees from 
the most recent experience study (1997-2015)

Inverness Public Utility District

As of June 30, 2021

 SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

(GASB 75 Note Disclosures and Required Supplementary Information)

- 42 -

DR
AF
T



              Inverness Public Utility District  
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 11 

2020-2021 Auditor Management Report 

 and  

Response Letter 
 

 
 

 



INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
&

MANAGEMENT REPORT

For the Year Ended
JUNE 30, 2021

DRAFT 
12/13/2021

To be used only for management discussion
purposes; engagement is incomplete; this
draft is subject to final review and possible
revision. **Report/Letter date is TENTATIVE-TBD**



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

Report on Internal Controls 1

Required Communications 2-3

Management Observations 4-5    

DR
AF
T



- 1 -

Board of Directors
Inverness Public Utility District
Inverness, California

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of Inverness Public Utility District for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
we considered its internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of its internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Inverness Public Utility District’s internal control.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s 
ability to initiate, authorize, record, process or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or a combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a 
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the 
entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and would not 
necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, as 
defined above. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider material weaknesses, as 
defined above. 

During our audit, we noted certain matters involving internal controls and other operational matters that are 
presented for your consideration in this report. We will review the status of these comments during our next 
engagement. Our comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with appropriate members of 
management, are not intended to be all-inclusive, but rather represent those matters that we considered worthy of 
your consideration. Our comments and recommendations are submitted as constructive suggestions to assist you in 
strengthening controls and procedures; they are not intended to reflect on the honesty or integrity of any employee. 
We will be pleased to discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of 
these matters, or to assist Inverness Public Utility District in implementing the recommendations.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and Board of Directors of Inverness Public 
Utility District and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other 
than these specified parties.

We thank Inverness Public Utility District’s staff for its cooperation during our audit.

R.J. Ricciardi, Inc.
R.J. Ricciardi, Inc. 
Certified Public Accountants

San Rafael, California

DR
AF
T



- 2 -

Board of Directors
Inverness Public Utility District
Inverness, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of Inverness Public Utility District for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 7, 2021, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to 
plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance and because we did not perform a 
detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Inverness Public Utility District. Such considerations were 
solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 
control.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the terms 
of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and their 
application. The significant accounting policies used by Inverness Public Utility District are described in Note 1 to the 
basic financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not 
changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by Inverness Public Utility District during the year for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been 
recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the basic financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the basic financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. We evaluated 
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates in determining that they are reasonable in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the basic financial 
statements were:

 Accrual and disclosure of compensated absences;
 Capital asset lives and depreciation expense;
 Actuarial assumptions for pension and retiree health plan disclosure;
 Accrual and disclosure of leases;
 Fair value of investments and financial instruments.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Of the 11 audit 
adjustments detected as a result of audit procedures and approved by management, most were material, either 
individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

DR
AF
T



Board of Directors
Inverness Public Utility District – Page 2

- 3 -

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, 
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our 
audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated December XX, 2021.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to Inverness Public Utility District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion 
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check 
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations 
with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as Inverness Public Utility District’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to 
our retention.

Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Pension Plan information, 
Schedule of Change in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General 
Fund, which is required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and Board of Directors of Inverness Public 
Utility District and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other 
than these specified parties.

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
BOARD OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT REPORT

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

- 4 -

Current Year Observations

There were no current year observations.

Prior Year Observations

1) Separation of Duties

Observation:

During the course of the audit we noted that Inverness Public Utility District’s (the District’s) accountant and General 
Manager is the same person. The General Manager/Accountant is also a check signer.

Recommendation:

We recommended District checks be signed by Board Members whenever possible to reduce the risk of fraud and 
error.

Status:

This recommendation is being implemented when feasible.

2) Review of Bank Statements

Observation:

During the course of the audit we noted that monthly bank statements and reconciliations of the District are not 
reviewed by someone other than the preparer.

Recommendation:

We recommended bank statements and related reconciliations be reviewed by a knowledgeable District staff or Board 
member each month and that this individual document the review by initialing the statements and reconciliations.

Status:

Board Treasurer reviews the bank statements and reconciliations quarterly.

3) Fund Accounting

Observation:

During our audit we noted the District’s Water, Fire and General Funds do not balance. The transactions for these 
funds should be recorded in separate self-balancing funds. The District’s accountant does record some transactions 
separately but should set up completely separate funds or departments. The allocation of District expenses between 
the General and Water Fund could be inaccurate.

DR
AF
T



Inverness Public Utility District
BOARD OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT REPORT

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

- 5 -

Recommendation:

We recommended the District set up completely separate self-balancing funds or departments in Quickbooks for the 
General, Fire and Water funds.

Status:

This District has purchased new software.

4) Accounts Receivable Summary, Vendor Invoices and Credit Card Statements Approval

Observation:

During the course of our audit, we noted the District’s accounts payable invoices, credit card bills and accounts 
receivable summary were not initialed by a supervisor or Department Head. 

Recommendation:

We recommended the supervisory approval of the above noted documents be documented by initialing the related 
documents.

Status:

This recommendation has been implemented

DR
AF
T



 

 

Inverness Public Utility District  
P os t O f f i c e  B o x  4 6 9  

5 0  I n v e r n e s s W a y N o r t h  
I n v e r n e s s,  C A   9 4 9 3 7 - 0 4 6 9  

(415) 669-1414      i n v e r n e s s p u d . o r g       a d m i n @ i n v e r n e s s p u d . o r g  

Board of Directors:  Kenneth J. Emanuels, President  •   Dak ota Whitney, Vice Presiden t 
Kathryn Don ohue, Treasurer  •   Bren t Johnson  •   David Press 

  
Shelley Reddin g, Administrator 

 James K. Fox, Chief of Operations (Fire Chief, Water Sys tem Superin tendent)   
 

R.J. Ricciardi, Inc. 
Certified Public Accountants 
1101 Fifth Ave., Suite 360 
San Rafael, CA 94901 
 
We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the basic financial statements of Inverness Public 
Utility District as of June 30, 2021 and for the year then ended for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to 
whether the basic financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of Inverness Public Utility District 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the 
previously mentioned basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting policies, establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control, and preventing and detecting fraud. 
 
We understand that you prepared the trial balance for use during the audit and that your preparation of the trial 
balance was limited to formatting the information in Inverness Public Utility District’s summary trial balance 
into a working trial balance. Also, as part of your audit, you prepared the draft basic financial statements, 
calculated depreciation expense and drafted the related notes from the trial balance. We have designated a 
competent management-level individual to oversee your services and have made all management decisions and 
performed all management functions. We have reviewed, approved and accepted responsibility for those basic 
financial statements, audit adjustments, depreciation calculations and related notes and believe they are 
adequately supported by the books and records of Inverness Public Utility District. 
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered material if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in light of 
surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the 
information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement 
that is monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. 
 
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you during your 
audit(s): 

1. The basic financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of 
the primary government and all component units required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
to be included in the financial reporting entity. 

2. We have made available to you all: 

a. Financial records and related data [and all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from 
funding sources]. 

b. Minutes of the meetings of Inverness Public Utility District Board of Directors or summaries of 
actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 



 Page 2  
 

Inverness Public Utility District 

I nv ern es s P u bli c Ut ili ty  Di str i ct 

3. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or 
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 

4. There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records 
underlying the basic financial statements.   

5. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

6. The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements as a whole for each opinion unit.  

7. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent 
and detect fraud. 

8. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting Inverness Public Utility District involving: 

a. Management, 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the basic financial statements. 

9. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting Inverness Public Utility 
District received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others. 

10. We have no knowledge of any employees or governing board members working in collusion in an effort 
to circumvent or override internal controls. 

11. Inverness Public Utility District’s assets are properly insured against the risk of loss and damage from acts 
of employee dishonesty and fraud. 

12. Bank and investment statements and related reconciliations are reviewed each month by a responsible 
official and we are not aware of any unauthorized transactions reported in our monthly bank and 
investment statements. 

13. We are unaware of any unauthorized, erroneous or fraudulent credit or debit card transactions and 
electronic transfers. 

14. Inverness Public Utility District has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 
classification of assets, liabilities, or fund equity. 

15. The following, if any, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the basic financial statements: 

a. Related party transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers, leasing 
arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties. 

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which Inverness Public Utility District is contingently 
liable. 

c. All accounting estimates that could be material to the basic financial statements, including the key 
factors and significant assumptions underlying those estimates, and we believe the estimates are 
reasonable in the circumstances. 

16. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and we have identified and 
disclosed to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, including legal and 
contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

17. There are no estimates that may be subject to a material change in the near term that have not been properly 
disclosed in the basic financial statements. We understand that near term means the period within one year 



 Page 3  
 

Inverness Public Utility District 

I nv ern es s P u bli c Ut ili ty  Di str i ct 

of the date of the basic financial statements. In addition, we have no knowledge of concentrations existing 
at the date of the basic financial statements that make Inverness Public Utility District vulnerable to the 
risk of severe impact that have not been properly disclosed in the basic financial statements. We understand 
that concentrations include individual or group concentrations of contributors, grantors, clients, customers, 
suppliers, lenders, products, services, fund-raising events, sources of labor or materials, licenses or other 
rights, or operating areas or markets. We further understand that severe impact means a significant financially 
disruptive effect on the normal functioning of Inverness Public Utility District. We have identified all 
accounting estimates that could be material to the basic financial statements, including the key factors and 
significant assumptions underlying those estimates, and we believe the estimates are reasonable in the 
circumstances. 

 

18. We have identified the most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the basic financial statements: 

 Capital asset lives and depreciation expense. 
 Accrual and disclosure of compensated absences. 
 Actuarial assumptions for pension and retiree health plan disclosure. 
 Accrual and disclosure of leases. 
 Fair value of investments and financial instruments. 

19. There were no significant changes from prior years estimates in methods or assumptions, outcomes or 
degrees of uncertainty.  

20. We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to the 
audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented. 

21. We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as our 
planned corrective actions, for the report. 

22. Inverness Public Utility District has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 
classification of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund 
balance or net position. 

23. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, of 
abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial statements or other financial data 
significant to the audit objectives. 

24. There are no: 

a. Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including those 
pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for 
disclosure in the basic financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for 
reporting on noncompliance. 

b. Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are probable of assertion and must 
be disclosed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 5, 
Accounting for Contingencies. 

c. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by FASB 
Statement No. 5. 

d. Reservations or designation of fund equity that were not properly authorized and approved. 

25. Inverness Public Utility District has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or 
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 

26. Inverness Public Utility District has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a 
material effect on the basic financial statements in the event of noncompliance.  



 Page 4  
 

Inverness Public Utility District 

I nv ern es s P u bli c Ut ili ty  Di str i ct 

27. The basic financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, 
and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations. 

28. The basic financial statements properly classify all funds and activities. 

29. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds 
that are presented as major are particularly important to financial statement users. 

30. Net position components (invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted) and 
fund balance reserves and designations are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

31. Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded. All loans made by 
Inverness Public Utility District or another entity acting on behalf of Inverness Public Utility District are 
properly identified, recorded and reported in Inverness Public Utility District’s basic financial statements. 

32. Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of 
activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 

33. Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general 
revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund principal. 

34. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported. 

35. Special and extraordinary items are appropriately classified and reported. 

36. Deposits and investment securities are properly classified in category of custodial credit risk. 

37. Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if applicable, 
depreciated. 

38. We have appropriately disclosed the Inverness Public Utility District’s policy regarding whether to first 
apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 
restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly 
recognized under the policy. 

39. We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted, committed, 
assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more than one resource 
classification is available. That policy determines the fund balance classifications for financial reporting 
purposes.  

40. We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI is measured 
and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and presentation have not 
changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and 
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI. 

41. With respect to the supplemental information:  

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplemental information in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and we believe the 
supplemental information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The methods of 
measurement and presentation of the supplemental information listed in the table of contents in 
Inverness Public Utility District’s financial statements have not changed from those used in the prior 
period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. 

b. If the supplemental information is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make 
the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary 
information no later than the date we issue the supplementary information and the auditor’s report 
thereon. 



 Page 5  
 

Inverness Public Utility District 

I nv ern es s P u bli c Ut ili ty  Di str i ct 

42. All copies of original documents submitted to you have not been improperly altered or changed. 

43. We have prepared the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and it is fairly presented as required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

44. We are not aware of any off-balance sheet or general ledger accounts and transactions. 

45. We have prepared and approve the fund allocations of Pension and retiree health liabilities in compliance 
with GASB 68 & 75. 

46. We are not aware of any errors in the CalPERS pension plan and retiree health plan census data for all 
plans. 

47. We are not aware of any potential risks or financial reporting errors related to our information systems and 
related controls. 

48. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (if applicable). 

49. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

50. We did not consult with an attorney regarding litigation during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 and 
through the date of this letter. 

51. We have reviewed the Board of Directors & Management Report. 
 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, no events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred 
subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or 
disclosure in the aforementioned basic financial statements. 
 
 
Signed:          
 
 
Title:            
 
 
Date:            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 6  
 

Inverness Public Utility District 

I nv ern es s P u bli c Ut ili ty  Di str i ct 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



              Inverness Public Utility District  
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 13 

Closed Session: 
Public Employee Evaluation (District Administrator) 

pursuant to Gov. Code Sec. 54957 
 

 
 

 



              Inverness Public Utility District  
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 14 

Reconvene in Open Session 

Report on Actions Taken in Closed Sessions 
 

 
 

 



              Inverness Public Utility District  
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 15 

Committee Meetings/Reports: 
Board Committee Assignments  

for Calendar Year 2022 
 

 
 

 



              Inverness Public Utility District 
Board Meeting January 26, 2022 

 

  

 

 

 
Agenda Item No.16 

Announcements, 

Next Meeting, 

Adjournment 
 

 


	00 Agenda 2022-01-26 DRAFT
	01 Tab Call to order
	02 Tab Officer Elections
	03 Tab Public Expression
	04 Tab Proposed Voter Initiative Parcel Tax
	04a. FULL TEXT OF MEASURE for Board Meeting Packet 01.26.22
	FULL TEXT OF MEASURE “*”
	Dec 11 version

	05 Tab Minutes Approval
	05. 20211117 Regular Meeting minutes DRAFT
	Board of Directors
	Minutes, Regular Meeting

	06 Tab Management Report
	06a1. Nov - Dec 2021 Profit and Loss
	06a1. Profit & Loss by Fund to December 2021
	06a1. Summary Balance Sheet
	06a2. Capital Projects Report Form 2021-2022
	06c2. Tenney Tank Quarterly Progress Report 2021-12-30
	PROJECT SUMMARY
	REPORT DATE
	PROJECT NAME
	PREPARED BY

	STATUS SUMMARY
	PROJECT OVERVIEW
	TASK
	%
	DUE DATE
	NOTES

	BUDGET OVERVIEW
	CATEGORY
	SPENT
	% OF TOTAL
	EST. BUDGET
	NOTES

	ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS COMPLIANCE
	ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENT
	STATUS
	DATE(S)

	ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS COMPLIANCE DESCRIPTIONS
	CHANGE ORDERS
	DESCRIPTION OF WORK
	AMOUNT
	CHANGE IN CONTRACT AMOUNT
	SCHEDULE
	NOTES

	PROBLEMS/RESOLUTIONS

	06e1. MERA Handout 11_8_21
	06e2. MERA_GB_handout_12_8_21 _ Final
	06g1. Drought_  What drought_EBlast
	06g2. New Year E-Blast
	06g3. New Year E-Blast responses
	07 Tab Water System Rpt
	07a. AR Report 12-31-2021
	07a1. 2021-10 water report
	07a2. 2021-11 water report
	07a3. 2021-12 water report
	07b. Water 3 year comparison charts
	Sheet1

	07c. Customer usage graph Jul-Dec 2021
	08 Tab Fire Department Report
	09 Tab Expenditures
	09a. November 2021 Expenditures
	09b. December 2021 Expenditures
	09c. J Fox Cal Card November 2021 Detail
	09d. J Fox Cal Card December 2021 Summary
	09e. S Redding Cal Card November 2021 Detail
	09f. S Redding Cal Card December 2021 Detail
	10 Tab FY2020-2021 Audit
	10a SR FY 2020-2021 Audit
	10. Inverness PUD Draft Audit Rpt 6.30.21 (003)
	11 Tab FY2020-2021 Audit Management Report
	11a. Inverness PUD Draft Mgmt Rpt 6.30.21
	11b. Inverness PUD Audit 06.30.21 Management Rep Letter-DRAFT
	13 Tab Closed Session Administrator Evaluation
	14 Tab Reconvene in Open Session
	15 Tab Committee Reports
	16 Tab Adjournment



